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REPRESENTATION LETTER

The entities that are required to be included i@ dombined financial statements of Taiwan
Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited asraf &or the year ended December 31, 2008,
under the Criteria Governing the Preparation oflidtfon Reports, Consolidated Business Reports
and Consolidated Financial Statements of AffilialEederprises are the same as those included in
the consolidated financial statements prepared anfocmity with the revised Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 7, “Consolidatédancial Statements”. In addition, the
information required to be disclosed in the combifimancial statements is included in the
consolidated financial statements. Consequentlgiwdn Semiconductor Manufacturing
Company Limited and Subsidiaries do not prepamparste set of combined financial statements.

Very truly yours,
TAIWAN SEMICONDUCTOR MANUFACTURING COMPANY LIMITED

By

MORRIS CHANG
Chairman

January 17, 2009



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Taiwan Semiconductor
Manufacturing Company Limited and subsidiaries Becember 31, 2008 and 2007, and the
related consolidated statements of income, chaingsisareholders’ equity and cash flows for the
years then ended. These consolidated financi@stats are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express ami@p on these consolidated financial

statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the KRuBmverning the Audit of Financial
Statements by Certified Public Accountants and tmglistandards generally accepted in the
Republic of China. Those rules and standards redat we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the finanatehstnts are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidesngporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assgsthe accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as wedlvaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provideagsonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetageferred to above present fairly, in all materia
respects, the consolidated financial position ofvda Semiconductor Manufacturing Company
Limited and subsidiaries as of December 31, 20@B2007, and the results of their consolidated
operations and their consolidated cash flows fer years then ended in conformity with the
Guidelines Governing the Preparation of Financiapdtts by Securities Issuers and accounting
principles generally accepted in the Republic oin@h



As discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated findrste&tements, effective January 1, 2008, Taiwan
Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited andssdibries adopted Interpretation 2007-052,
“Accounting for Bonuses to Employees, Directors &upervisors” issued by the Accounting

Research and Development Foundation of the Repufli€hina and relevant requirements

promulgated by the Financial Supervisory Commissibtihhe Executive Yuan.

January 17, 2009

Notice to Readers

The accompanying consolidated financial statemargsntended only to present the consolidated
financial position, results of operations and cdkiws in accordance with accounting principles
and practices generally accepted in the Republi€loha and not those of any other jurisdiction.
The standards, procedures and practices to audih @wnsolidated financial statements are those
generally accepted and applied in the Republicluh€.

For the convenience of readers, the auditors’ ré@ord the accompanying consolidated financial
statements have been translated into English floerotiginal Chinese version prepared and used
in the Republic of China. If there is any confligitween the English version and the original
Chinese version or any difference in the interpiietaof the two versions, the Chinese-language
auditors’ report and financial statements shall yaé.



Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2008 AND 2007
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Par Vaie)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSET.
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 2 and 4)
Financial assets at fair value through profit @sl¢Notes 2, 5 and 24)
Available-for-sale financial assets (Notes 2, 6 a4l
Held-to-maturity financial assets (Notes 2, 7 aAjl 2
Receivables from related parties (Note 25)
Notes and accounts receivable
Allowance for doubtful receivables (Notes 2 and 8)
Allowance for sales returns and others (Notes 28nd
Other receivables from related parties (Note 25)
Other financial assets (Note :
Inventories, net (Notes 2 and 9)
Deferred income tax assets, net (Notes 2 and 18)
Prepaid expenses and other current as

Total current assets

LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS (Notes 26, 7, 10, 11 and 2
Investments accounted for using equity method
Available-for-sale financial assets
Held-to-maturity financial asse
Financial assets carried at cost

Total long-term investments

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Notes 2, 12 and 26)
Cost
Land and land improvements
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Office equipmer
Leased assets

Accumulated depreciatit
Advance payments and construction in prog

Net property, plant and equipment
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Goodwill (Note 2)
Deferred charges, net (Notes 2 and 13)
Total intangible assets
OTHER ASSETS
Deferred income tax assets, net (Notes 2 and 18)
Refundable deposits
Others (Note -

Total other assets

TOTAL

200¢ 2007
Amount % Amount %
$ 13F81 35 $ 94,986,488 16
55,730 - 1,632,387 -
10,898,715 2 66,688,368 12
5,881,999 1 11,526,946 2
407 - 10,885 -
25,023,321 4 47,204,126 8
(455,751) - (701,807) -
(6,071,026) (1) (4,089,035) (1)
99,918 - 243,620
1,911,69 - 1,515,52 -
14,876,645 3 23,862,260 4
3,969,330 1 5,572,334 1
181369 _ - 1,370.23 __ -

252,618,431 _ 45

249,822,329 _ 42

908158 3 22,517,289 4
2,032,658 - 1,400,691 -
15,426,25 3 8,697,72: 2
3,615,447 1 3,845,619 1
39,981,515 7 36,461,325 7
953,857 - 942,197 -

132,249,996 24
697,498,743 125
12,430,80 2

722,339 -

118,640,027 21
646,419,427 113
11,829,64 2
652,296 -

843,855,735 151
(618816,267) (11C)
18605.88; _ 3

778,483,587 136
(540,099,56) (94)
21,868,16 4

243,645,35044

260,252,187 __ 46

6,044,392 1 5,987,582 1
7,125,828 1 7,923,601 2
13,170,220 2 13,911,183 3
6,636,873 1 7,313,283 1
2,767,199 1 2,777,769 1
97.00! - 327,151 -
9,501,073 2 10,418,202 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part oftinsolidated financial statements.

(With Deloitte & Touche audit report dated Januiry 2009)

$ 568,916,558 _10C $ 570.8656.22 _10C

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit loss (Notes 2, 5 and 24)
Accounts payable
Payables to related parties (Note 25)
Income tax payable (Notes 2 and 18)
Bonuses payable to employees, directors and sispesy(Notes 3 and 20)
Payables to contractors and equipment suppliers
Accrued expenses and other current liabilitiestéd 6 and 28)
Current portion of bonds payable and bank loare€8!14, 15 and 26)

Total current liabilitie

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Bonds payable (Note 1
Long-term bak loans (Notes 15 and Z
Other long-term payables (Notes 16 and 28)
Obligations under capital leases (Not

Total long-term liabilities

OTHER LIABILITIES
Accrued pension cost (Notes 2 and 17)
Guarantee deposits (Note 28)
Deferred credits (Notes 2 and 25)
Others

Total other liabilities
Total liabilities

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE PAREN"
Capital stock - $10 par value (Notes 20 and 22)
Authorized: 28,050,000 thousand shares
Issuec 25,625,43thousand shares in 20(
26,427,104 thousand shares in 2(
Capital surplus (Notes 2 and 20)

Retained earnings (Note :
Appropriated as legal capital reserve
Appropriated as special capital reserve
Unappropriated earnings

Others (Notes 2, 22 and 24)
Cumulative translation adjustments
Unrealized gain/loss on financial instruments
Treasury stock: 834,096 thousand shares

Equity attributable to shareholders of theepar
MINORITY INTERESTS (Note 2

Total shareholders’ equity

TOTAL

200¢ 2007
Amount % Amount %
$ 85,187 - $ 249,313 -
5,553,151 1 11,574,882 2
489,857 - 1,503,376 1
9,331,825 2 11,126,128 2
15,369,730 3 - -
7,998,773 1 6,256,732 1
9,755,835 2 17,714,763 3
8,222,398 1 280,813 -
56,806,75 _ 10 48,706,00 9
4,500,001 1 12,500,00 2
1,420,471 - 1,722,19 -
BB 2 9,409,978 2
722,33 - 652,29¢ _ -

16,191,041 3

24,284 470 4

3,701,584 1 3,665,522 1
1,484,495 2,243,009 -
316,537 - 1,236,873 -
43,709 - 43,774 -
5,546,325 1 7,189,178 1

78,544,122 14

80,179,655 14

256,254,37 46

264,271037 4€

49,875,255 9

53,732,682 9

67,324,393 12
391,857 -
102,337,417 __ 1.

{oe]

56,406,684 10
629,550 -
161,828,337 _ 28

170,053,667 0

218,864,571 _ 38

481,158 - (1,072,853) -
(287,342) - 680,997 -

- (49,385,032 __(8)
193816 _ - (49,776,883 __(8)

476,377,111 85

3,995.35!

=

487,091,402 85

3,594,16 1

480,372,467 __ 86

490,685,571 _ 86

$ 5580916,58 _10C $ 570.865.22 _10C



Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008 AND 2007
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earning Per Share)

2008 2007
Amount % Amount %
GROSS SALES (Notes 2 and 25) $ 341,983,355 $ 328,336,172
SALES RETURNS AND ALLOWANCES (Notes 2 and 8) 8,825,695 5,705,576
NET SALES 333,157,660 100 322,630,596 100
COST OF SALES (Notes 19 and 25) 191,408,09958 180,280,385 _ 56
GROSS PROFIT 141,749,561 _ 42 142,350,211 _ 44
OPERATING EXPENSES (Notes 19 and 25)
Research and development 21,480,937 7 17,946,322 5
General and administrative 11,096,599 3 8,963,836 3
Marketing 4,736,657 1 3,718,146 1
Total operating expenses 37,314,193 11 30,628,304 9
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS 104,435,368 31 111,721,907 _ 35
NON-OPERATING INCOME AND GAINS
Interest income (Note 2) 5373,823 2 5,651,700 2
Foreign exchange gain, net (Note 2) 1,227,653 1 80,922 -
Technical service income (Notes 25 and 28) 19681 - 590,391 -
Settlement income (Note 28) 951,180 - 985,114 1
Gain on settlement and disposal of financial assets
(Notes 2 and 24) 721,050 - 874,670 -
Equity in earnings of equity method investees,(Netes
2 and 10) 701,533 - 2,507,869 1
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipmedt a
other assets (Notes 2 and 25) 100,874 - 91,210 -
Subsidy income (Note 2) 8,029 - 364,321 -
Valuation gain on financial instruments, net (Nd2e$§
and 24) - - 63,017 -
Others (Note 25) 555,341 - 724,589 -
Total non-operating income and gains 10,821,449 3 11,933,803 4
(Continued)



Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008 AND 2007
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earning Per Share)

2008 2007
Amount % Amount %
NON-OPERATING EXPENSES AND LOSSES
Loss on impairment of financial assets (Notes 2,16,
and 24) $ 1,560,055 1 9% 54,208
Valuation loss on financial instruments, net (N&e$S
and 24) 1,081,019 - - -
Interest expense 614,988 - 842,242 -
Loss on impairment of idle assets (Note 2) 210,477 - - -
Provision for litigation loss (Note 28h) 99,126 - 1,008,635 1
Others (Note 2) 218,906 - 108,599 -
Total non-operating expenses and losses 3.784,57 1 2,013,684 1
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 111,472,246 33 121,642,026 38
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Notes 2 and 18) (10,949,009 (3) (11,709,626 _ (4)
NET INCOME $ 100,523,237 0 $ 109,932,400 4
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Shareholders of the parent $ 99,933,16830 $ 109,177,093 34
Minority interests 590,069 - 755,307 -
$ 100,523,237 0 $ 109,932,400 4
200¢ 2003
Before After Before After

Income Tax Income Tax Income Tax Income Tax
EARNINGS PER SHARE (NT$, Note 23)

Basic earnings per share $ 428 $ 3.86 $ 450 $ 4.06
Diluted earnings per share $ 425 $ 3.83 $ 450 $ 4.06

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdmsolidated financial statements.

(With Deloitte & Touche audit report dated Januhry 2009) (Concluded)



Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008 AND 2007
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Divideds Per Share)

Equity Attributable to Shareholders of he Parent

BALANCE, JANUARY 1, 2007

Appropriations of prior year's earning
Legal capital reserve
Reversal of special capital reserve
Bonus to employees - in cash
Bonus to employees - in stock
Cash dividends to shareholders - NT$3.00 per share
Stock dividends to shareholders - NT$0.02 per share
Bonus to directors and supervisors

Capital surplus transferred to capital stock

Net income in 2007

Adjustment arising from changes in percentage of
ownership in equity method investees

Translation adjustments

Issuance of stock from excising employee stock optic

Cash dividends received by subsidiaries from parent
company

Valuation gain on availak-for-sale financial asse

Equity in the valuation loss on available-for-stt@ncial
assets held by equity method investees

Treasury stock repurchased

Increase in minority interests

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2007

Appropriations of prior year's earnings
Legal capital reserve
Reversal of special capital reserve
Bonus to employee- in cast
Bonus to employees - in stock
Cash dividends to shareholders - NT$3.00 per share
Stock dividends to shareholde NT$0.02 per sha
Bonus to directors

Capital surplus transferred to capital stock

Net income in 20C

Adjustment arising from changes in percentage of
ownership in equity method investees

Translation adjustments

Issuance of stock from exercising employee stotiong

Cash dividends received by subsidiaries from parent
company

Valuation loss on available-for-sale financial asse

Equity in the valuation loss on available-for-stt@ncial
assets held by equity method investees

Treasury stock repurchased

Treasury stock retired

Decrease in minority interests

Others
Retained Earnings Unrealized
Capital Stock - Common Stock Legal Special Cumulative Gain (Loss) Total
Shares (in Capital Capital Capital  Unappropriated Translation  on Financial Treasury Others Minority ~ Shareholders’
Thousands Amount Surplus Reserve Reserve Earnings Total Adjustments  Instruments Stock Total Total Interests Equity
25,829,688% 258,296,879 $ 54,107,498 $ 43,705,711 $ 640,742 $ 152,778,079 $ 197,124,532 $ (1,191,165)$ 561,615 $ (918,075)$  (1,547,625)% 507,981,284 $ 1,156,832 $ 509,138,116
- - - 12,700,973 - (12,700,973) - - - - - - - -
- - - - (11,192) 11,192 - - - - - - - -
- - - - - (4,572,798) (4,572,798) - - - - (4,572,798) - (4,572,798)
457,280 4,572,798 - - - (4,572,798) (4,572,798) - - - - - - -
- - - - - (77,489,064)  (77,489,064) - - - - (77,489,064) - (77,489,064 )
51,659 516,594 - - - (516,594) (516,594) - - - - - - -
- - - - - (285,800) (285,800) - - - - (285,800) - (285,800)
489, 774,891 (774,891) - - - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - 109,177,093 109,177,093 - - - - 109,177,093 755,307 109,932,400
- - (28,639) - - - - - - - - (28,639) 31,862 3,223
- - - - - - - 118,312 - - 118,312 118,312 (99,318) 18,994
10,98¢ 109,87! 326,95: - - - - - - - - 436,82 - 436,82
- - 101,762 - - - - - - - - 101,762 - 101,762
- - - - - - - - 241,82: - 241,82: 241,82: 19,48% 261,30¢
- - - - - - - - (122,439) - (122,439) (122,439) - (122,439)
- - - - - - - - - (48,466,957)  (48,466,957)  (48,466,957) - (48,466,957)
- - - - - - - - - - - - 1,729,999 1,729,999
26,427,104 264,271,037 53,732,682 56,406,684 629,550 161,828,337 218,864,571  (1,072,853) 680,997 (49,385,032)  (49,776,888) 487,091,402 3,594,169 490,685,571
- - - 10,917,709 - (10,917,709) - - - - - - - -
- - - - (237,693) 237,693 - - - - - - - -
- - - - - (3,939,88) (3,939,88) - - - - (3,939,88) - (3,939,88:)
393,988 3,939,883 - - - (3,939,883) (3,939,883) - - - - - - -
- - - - - (76,881,311) (76,881,311) - - - - (76,881,311) - (76,881,311)
51,25¢ 512,54: - - - (512,54%) (512,54%) - - - - - - -
- - - - - (176,890) (176,890) - - - - (176,890) - (176,890)
836, 768,813 (768,813) - - - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - 99,933,16 99,933,16 - - - - 99,933,16 590,06¢ 100,523,23
- - (137,063) - - - - - - - - (137,063) 11,700 (125,363)
- - - - - - - 1,554,011 - - 1,554,011 1,554,011 (68,792) 1,485,219
6,027 60,26¢ 166,88: - - - - - - - - 227,15 - 227,15(
- - 102,279 - - - - - - - - 102,279 - 102,279
- - - - - - - - (826,251) - (826,251) (826,251) (17,048) (843,299)
- - - - - - - - (142,088) - (142,088) (142,088) - (142,088)
- - - - - - - - - (30,427,413)  (30,427,413) (30,427,413) - (30,427,413)
(1,329,817) (13,298,168) (3,220,714) - - (63,293,563)  (63,293,563) - - 79,812,445 79,812,445 - - -
- - - - - - - - - - - - (114,749 (114,742
_ 2562543 $ 256,254,37 $ 4987525 $ 67,32439 $ 39185 $ 102,337.41 $ 170,053,66 $ 481,15t $ (287,34:) $ - $ 19381 $ 47637711 $ 3,99535 $ 480,372.46

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 200

The accompanying notes are an integral part of¢insolidated financial statements.

(With Deloitte & Touche audit report dated Janukry 2009)




Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008 AND 2007
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

2008 2007
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income attributable to shareholders of themare $ 99,933,168 $ 109,177,093
Net income attributable to minority interests 0%%9 755,307
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 81,512,191 80,005,395
Amortization of premium/discount of financial asset (93,393) (117,159)
Loss on impairment of financial assets 1,560,055 54,208
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale financiaeds, net (637,219) (610,167)
Gain on disposal of financial assets carried at, s (83,831) (264,503)
Equity in earnings of equity method investees, net (701,533) (2,507,869)
Dividends received from equity method investees 1,661,134 625,130
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipmedta@ther assets, net (100,285) (85,020)
Loss on impairment of idle assets 210,477 -
Deferred income tax 2,279,414 943,797
Net changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in:
Financial assets and liabilities at fair value tlylo profit or loss 1,412,531 (187,084)
Receivables from related parties 10,478 629,467
Notes and accounts receivable 22,180,805 (12,134,176)
Allowance for doubtful receivables (246,056) (48,126)
Allowance for sales returns and others 1,981,991 1,205,277
Other receivables from related parties 143,702 13,243
Other financial assets (425,937) 842,136
Inventories 8,985,615 (2,226,106)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 6#43,4 290,434
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable (6,021,731) 3,218,255
Payables to related parties (1,013,519) (375,731)
Income tax payable (1,794,303) 3,179,655
Bonuses payable to employees, directors and s$oesvi 15,369,730 -
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 3,954,427) 913,872
Accrued pension cost 36,062 125,462
Deferred credits (858,16 343,878
Net cash provided by operating activities 223,865 183,766,668
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisitions of:
Property, plant and equipment (59,222,654) (84,000,985)
Available-for-sale financial assets (85,273,867 (87,550,197)
Held-to-maturity financial assets (16,523,275) -
Investments accounted for using equity method 5,8HAL) (5,803,826)
Financial assets carried at cost (463,211) (911,323)
(Continued)



Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008 AND 2007
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

2008 2007
Proceeds from disposal or redemption of:
Available-for-sale financial assets $ 138,515,083 94,908,666
Held-to-maturity financial assets 15,634,620 17,325,120
Financial assets carried at cost 199,424 410,465
Property, plant and equipment and other assets 94,940 60,535
Proceeds from return of capital by investees 41287 -
Increase in deferred charges (3,395,287) (3,059,155)
Decrease (increase) in refundable deposits 00,57 (1,434,895)
Net cash paid for acquisition of subsidiaries - (404,445)
Increase in other assets (8,163 (228,747
Net cash used in investing activities (8,041,884 (70,688,787
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Decrease in short-term bank loans - (89,720)
Proceeds from long-term bank loans 98,400 653,000
Repayments of:
Long-term bank loans (468,313) (196,173)
Bonds payable - (7,000,000)
Decrease in guarantee deposits (758,514) (1,574,131)
Cash dividends (76,779,032) (77,387,302)
Cash bonus paid to employees (3,939,883) (4,572,798)
Bonus to directors and supervisors (176,890) (285,800)
Proceeds from exercise of employee stock options 227,150 436,827
Repurchase of treasury stock (33,480,997) (45,413,373)
Increase (decrease) in minority interests (1427 19,004
Net cash used in financing activities (115,392)8 (135,410,466
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT 98,058,860  (22,332,585)
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 1,568,404 (518,119)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 9986,488 117,837,192
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 19467%H2 $ 94,986,488
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
Interest paid $ 676,318 $ 922,079
Income tax paid $ 10477018 % 7,585,727
(Continued)



Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008 AND 2007
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

2008 2007

INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES AFFECTING BOTH

CASH AND NON-CASH ITEMS

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment $ H®B,527 $ 78,889,954

Decrease (increase) in payables to contractoreqmgment suppliers (1,742,041) 5,111,031

Increase in obligations under capital leases ,833 -

Cash paid $ 59,222,654 $ 84,000,98

Repurchase of treasury stock $ 30,427,413 $ 48,466,957

Decrease (increase) in accrued expenses and otinentliabilities 3,053,584 (3,053,584

Cash paid $ 33,480,997 $ 45,413,373
NONCASH FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Current portion of bonds payable and long-termiliizds $ 8,222,398 % 280,813

Current portion of other long-term payables

(under accrued expenses and other current tiab)li $ 1,126,5546% 3,735,875

The Company acquired controlling interests in XiaTec. (XinTec) and Mutual-Pak Technology Co., Ltd.
(Mutual-Pak) in March 2007 and July 2007, respetyiv and consolidated the revenue/income and
expenses/losses of these two subsidiaries fromegpective acquisition dates. Fair values of assequired
and liabilities assumed at acquisition were a®fod:

Current assets $ 3,101,718
Property, plant and equipment 2,339,546
Other assets 436,692
Current liabilities (1,937,407)
Long-term liabilities (701,855
Net amount $ 3,238,694
Purchase price for XinTec and Mutual-Pak $ 1,388
Less: Cash balance of XinTec and Mutual-Pak atiiattgpn (1,009,14p
Net cash paid for acquisition of XinTec and Mut®alk $ 404,445

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdinsolidated financial statements.

(With Deloitte & Touche audit report dated Januiry 2009) (Concluded)
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Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008 AND 2007
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, UnlesSpecified Otherwise)

1. GENERAL

Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company LimitéBSMC), a Republic of China (R.O.C.)
corporation, was incorporated on February 21, 188A venture among the Government of the R.O.C.,
acting through the Development Fund of the Exeeutwan; Philips Electronics N.V. and certain of its
affiliates (Philips); and certain other private @stors. On September 5, 1994, its shares weeel lgst the
Taiwan Stock Exchange (TSE). On October 8, 198MT listed some of its shares of stock on the New
York Stock Exchange (NYSE) in the form of Ameridaepositary Shares (ADSS).

TSMC is a dedicated foundry in the semiconduatolustry which engaged mainly in the manufacturing,
selling, packaging, testing and computer-aidedgiésg of integrated circuits and other semiconducto
devices and the manufacturing of masks.

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, TSMC and itssididgries had 24,834 and 25,258 employees,
respectively.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements are predemteconformity with the Guidelines Governing the
Preparation of Financial Reports by Securitiesdss@and accounting principles generally acceptetthen
R.O.C.

For the convenience of readers, the accompanyngatidated financial statements have been trauslat
into English from the original Chinese version @egd and used in the R.O.C. If there is any atinfli
between the English version and the original Clene=rsion or any difference in the interpretatibrihe
two versions, the Chinese-language consolidateshéial statements shall prevail.

Significant accounting policies are summarizetbiews:

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statememdiside the accounts of all directly and indirgctl
majority owned subsidiaries of TSMC, and the act®uof investees in which TSMC’s ownership

percentage is less than 50% but over which TSMGahamtrolling interest.  All significant intercospy
balances and transactions are eliminated upon idason.
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The consolidated entities were as follows:

Percentage of Ownership
December 31

Name of Investor Name of Investee 2008 2007 Remark
TSMC TSMC North America 100% 100% -
TSMC Japan Limited (TSMC Japan) 100% 100% -
TSMC Korea Limited (TSMC Korea) 100% 100% -
Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing  100% 100% -
Company Europe B.V. (TSMC
Europe)
TSMC International Investment Ltd. 100% 100% -
(TSMC International)
TSMC Global Ltd. (TSMC Global) 100% 100% -
TSMC (Shanghai) Company Limited 100% 100% -
(TSMC Shanghai)
Chi Cherng Investment Co., Ltd. (Chi - 36% TSMC and Hsin Ruey held in

Cherng)

Ruey)

VentureTech Alliance Fund IlI, L.P. 98% 98%
(VTAF 111)

VentureTech Alliance Fund I, L.P. 98% 98%
(VTAF II)

Emerging Alliance Fund, L.P. 99.5% 99.5%
(Emerging Alliance)

Global Unichip Corporation (GUC) 36% 37%

XinTec Inc. (XinTec) 42% 43%

TSMC Partners, Ltd. (TSMC Partners) 100% 100%

TSMC International TSMC Technology, Inc. (TSMC 100% 100%

Technology)

TSMC Development, Inc. (TSMC 100% 100%
Development)

InveStar Semiconductor Development 97% 97%
Fund, Inc. (ISDF)

InveStar Semiconductor Development 97% 97%

Fund, Inc. (I) LDC. (ISDF II)
TSMC Development  WaferTech, LLC (WaferTech) 99.996% 9.996%
VTAF 1l Mutual-Pak Technology Co., Ltd. 51% 51%

(Mutual-Pak)
Growth Fund Limited (Growth Fund) 100%

VTAF lll, VTAF Il and VentureTech Alliance Holdings, 100% 100%
Emerging Alliance L.L.C. (VTA Holdings)
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aggregate a 100% ownership of
Chi Cherng as of December 31,
2007. In July 2008, Chi Cherng
was merged by Hsin Ruey.

Hsin Ruey Investment Co., Ltd. (Hsin - 36% TSMC and Chi Cherng held in
aggregate a 100% ownership of
Hsin Ruey as of December 31,
2007. In August 2008, Hsin

Ruey was merged

by TSMC.

GUC becamersolidated entity of
TSMC as GUC's president was
assigned by TSMC and TSMC has
a controlling interest over the
financial, operating and personnel
hiring decisions of GUC.

TSMC obtained thred offive

director positions in March 2007
and TSMC has a controlling

interest in XinTec.

Newly established.

(Continued)



Percentage of Ownership
December 31

Name of Investor Name of Investee 2008 2007 Remark
GUC Global Unichip Corporation-NA 100% 100%
(GUC-NA)
Global Unichip Japan Co., Ltd. 100% 100%
(GUC-Japan)
Global Unichip Europe B.V. 100% - Newly established.

(GUC-Europe)

TSMC Partners TSMC Design Technology Canada 100% 100%
Inc. (TSMC Canada)
(Concluded)

The following diagram presents information regagdihe relationship and ownership percentages legtwe
TSMC and its consolidated investees as of DeceBibe2008:

TSMC

98%

100% 100% |100% 100% |100% 100% 100% 98% | 99.5% 36% 42% 100%

TSMC North| [ TSMC Japar| | TSMC Kored] TSMC TSMC TSMC TSMC VTAF Il VTAF I Emergin¢ GucC XinTec TSMC
America Europe International Global Shanghai Alliance Partners
68.42% 23.52% 8.06%
100% |100% | 97% 97% 51% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
TSMC TSMC ISDF ISDF Il Mutua- Growth VTA GUC-NA | [Guc-Japaf| Guc- TSMC
Technology| [Developmerit Pak Fund Holdings Europe Canada

|99.996%

WaferTech

TSMC North America is engaged in selling and mankeof integrated circuits and semiconductor desic
TSMC Japan, TSMC Korea and TSMC Europe are engagaaly in marketing or customer service and
technical supporting activities. TSMC Internatibiseengaged in investment in companies involvethan
design, manufacture, and other related businegheinsemiconductor industry. TSMC Global, TSMC
Partners and TSMC Development are engaged in ingeattivities. TSMC Shanghai is engaged in the
manufacturing and selling of integrated circuitsrqmant to the orders from and product design
specifications provided by customers. Emergingaalte, VTAF Il, VTAF Ill, VTA Holdings, ISDF,
ISDF II, and Growth Fund are engaged in investingaew start-up technology companies. TSMC Canada
and TSMC Technology are engaged mainly in engingesupport activities. WaferTech is engaged in the
manufacturing, selling, testing and computer-aidesigning of integrated circuits and other semicaiat
devices. GUC is engaged in researching, develppiragufacturing, testing and marketing of integtate
circuits. GUC-NA, GUC-Japan, and GUC-Europe argaged in providing products consulting in North
America, Japan, and Europe, respectively. XinBeznigaged in the provision of wafer packaging servi
Mutual-Pak is engaged in the manufacturing andhgedf electronic parts, and researching, devebkppind
testing of RFID.

Chi Cherng and Hsin Ruey, both 100% owned sub#diaf TSMC, were engaged in investing activities.
To simplify the organization structure of investiief'SMC merged Chi Cherng and Hsin Ruey in thedthir
quarter of 2008.

TSMC together with its subsidiaries are hereimatté&rred to collectively as the “Company”.

Minority interests in the aforementioned subsidisare presented as a separate component of slukmesh
equity.
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Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statasénconformity with the aforementioned guidelirsaxd
principles requires management to make reasonabiergtions and estimates of matters that are inthgre
uncertain. The actual results may differ from ntgamaent’s estimates.

Classification of Current and Noncurrent Assets and.iabilities

Current assets are assets held for trading pwspase assets expected to be converted to cashpsold
consumed within one year from the balance sheeat. daurrent liabilities are obligations incurred fo
trading purposes and obligations expected to hkedetithin one year from the balance sheet dafessets
and liabilities that are not classified as cur@et noncurrent assets and liabilities, respectively

Cash Equivalents

Repurchase agreements collateralized by governboerts, asset-backed commercial papers and cogporat
notes acquired with maturities of less than thremtims from the date of purchase are classifiedaah c
equivalents. The carrying amount approximatesviie.

Financial Assets/Liabilities at Fair Value ThroughProfit or Loss

Derivatives that do not meet the criteria for heedgcounting and financial assets acquired pritigifar

the purpose of selling them in the near term aitéally recognized at fair value, with transactionsts
expensed as incurred. The derivatives and finaasisets are remeasured at fair value subsequeitily
changes in fair value recognized in earnings. @ul@ way purchase or sale of financial assets is
accounted for using settlement date accounting.

Fair value is determined as follows: Publiclydd stocks - closing prices at the end of the year;
derivatives - using valuation techniques incorgotpestimates and assumptions that are consistigimt w
prevailing market conditions. When the fair valseositive, the derivative is recognized as arfaial
asset; when the fair value is negative, the deveas recognized as a financial liability.

Available-for-sale Financial Assets

Investments designated as available-for-sale fimhrmssets include debt securities and equity ritesu
Available-for-sale financial assets are initialcognized at fair value plus transaction costsahatirectly
attributable to the acquisition. Changes in fatue from subsequent remeasurement are reported as
separate component of shareholders’ equity. Theegponding accumulated gains or losses are
recognized in earnings when the financial asseleirgecognized from the balance sheet. A regular way
purchase or sale of financial assets is accountedgsing settlement date accounting.

Fair value is determined as follows: Structuredet deposits - using valuation techniques; open-end
mutual funds and money market funds - net assetesaat the end of the year; publicly traded stocks
closing prices at the end of the year; and othbt slecurities - average of bid and asked pricéisea¢nd of
the year.

Cash dividends are recognized as investment inagroa resolution of shareholders of an investeealait
accounted for as a reduction to the original cogtwestment if such dividends are declared oneidimings

of the investee attributable to the period priorthie purchase of the investment. Stock dividernds a
recorded as an increase in the number of shardsanel do not affect investment income. The cost pe
share is recalculated based on the new total nuoilstrares.

Any difference between the initial carrying amowfita debt security and the amount due at matisity
amortized using the effective interest method, wWithamortization recognized in earnings.
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If there is objective evidence which indicated théinancial asset is impaired, a loss is recagpiz If, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairmerd becreases, for equity securities, the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed to the éxtérihe decrease and recorded as an adjustment to
shareholders’ equity; for debt securities, the amad the decrease is recognized in earnings, geavthat

the decrease is clearly attributable to an eveithwbccurred after the impairment loss was recaghiz

Held-to-maturity Financial Assets

Debt securities for which the Company has a pasiintention and ability to hold to maturity are
categorized as held-to-maturity financial assetsame carried at amortized cost under the effedtitarest
method except for structured time deposits whiehcarried at acquisition cost. Those financiaétsare
initially recognized at fair value plus transactionsts that are directly attributable to the adtjais
Gains or losses are recognized at the time of dgréton, impairment or amortization. A regularywa
purchase or sale of financial assets is accouoteagsing settlement date accounting.

If there is objective evidence which indicated théinancial asset is impaired, a loss is recagghiz If, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairmestdesreases and the decrease is clearly attributabin
event which occurred after the impairment loss vegsgnized, the previously recognized impairmess lo
is reversed to the extent of the decrease. Thergalvmay not result in a carrying amount that eslsehe
amortized cost that would have been determinefirasimpairment loss had been recognized.

Allowance for Doubtful Receivables

An allowance for doubtful receivables is providegised on a review of the collectibility of notesdan
accounts receivable. The Company determines tlou@mof the allowance for doubtful receivables by
examining the aging analysis of outstanding notes accounts receivable and current trends in teditcr
quality of its customers as well as its internaidit policies.

Revenue Recognition and Allowance for Sales Returrad Others

The Company recognizes revenue when evidence afrangement exists, the rewards of ownership and
significant risk of the goods has been transfet@dhe buyer; price is fixed or determinable, and
collectibility is reasonably assured. Provisions éstimated sales returns and others are recandiud
year the related revenue is recognized, based siarieal experience, management’s judgment, and any
known factors that would significantly affect tHioaance.

Sales prices are determined using fair value tpkito account related sales discounts agreed tthéy
Company and its customers. Sales agreements ltygacavide that payment is due 30 days from ineoic
date for a majority of the customers and 30 to d¥sdafter the end of the month in which sales oémur
some customers. Since the receivables from sedesodectible within one year and such transactiare
frequent, fair value of the receivables is equintite the nominal amount of the cash to be received

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost orketavalue. Inventories are recorded at standastl axad
adjusted to the approximate weighted-average dogteabalance sheet date. Market value represents
replacement cost for raw materials, supplies aagesparts and net realizable value for work in psscand
finished goods. The Company assesses the impatiaoiging technology on its inventories on hand and
writes off inventories that are considered obsoletéear-end inventories are evaluated for estimated
excess quantities and obsolescence based on a didoranast within a specific time horizon, which is
generally 180 days or less. Estimated losses m@ap snd slow-moving items are recognized and iredud

in the allowance for losses.
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Investments Accounted for Using Equity Method

Investments in companies wherein the Company msercsignificant influence over the operating and
financial policy decisions are accounted for usihg equity method. The Company’s share of the net
income or net loss of an investee is recognizatien‘equity in earnings/losses of equity methodestees,
net” account. Effective January 1, 2006, pursuanthe revised Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 5, “Long-term Investments Accounted Wsing the Equity Method”, the cost of an
investment shall be analyzed and the cost of invest in excess of the fair value of identifiable assets
acquired, representing goodwill, shall not be aired.  If the fair value of identifiable net assatsjuired
exceeds the cost of investment, the excess shaltdmortionately allocated as reductions to faluga of
non-current assets (except for financial asse®rdttan investments accounted for using the equéthod
and deferred income tax assets). If there is tibgevidence which indicates that a investment is
impaired, the carrying amount of the investmeneiuced, with the related impairment loss recoghine
earnings.

When the Company subscribes for additional inwestehares at a percentage different from its iegist
ownership percentage, the resulting carrying amadinthe investment in the investee differs from the
amount of the Company’s share of the investee'styequThe Company records such a difference as an
adjustment to long-term investments with the cqroesling amount charged or credited to capital sstpl

Gains or losses on sales from the Company to\equethod investees or from equity method investees
the Company are deferred in proportion to the Campigaownership percentages in the investees wnth s
gains or losses are realized through transactidgthstinrd parties.

If an investee’s functional currency is a foremmrency, differences will result from the tranglatof the
investee’s financial statements into the reportngency of the Company. Such differences aregethr
or credited to cumulative translation adjustmeatseparate component of shareholders’ equity.

Financial Assets Carried at Cost

Investments for which the Company does not exersignificant influence and that do not have a edot
market price in an active market and whose faiuealannot be reliably measured, such as non-publicl
traded stocks and mutual funds, are carried at trigjinal cost. The costs of non-publicly tradsdcks
and mutual funds are determined using the weigatedage method. If there is objective evidenceclvhi
indicates that a financial asset is impaired, a Isgecognized. A subsequent reversal of suclimment
loss is not allowed.

The accounting treatment for cash dividends amcksdividends arising from financial assets caraedost
is the same as that for cash and stock dividensis@ifrom available-for-sale financial assets.

Property, Plant and Equipment, Assets Leased to O#irs and Idle Assets

Property, plant and equipment and assets leaseth¢os are stated at cost less accumulated defioeci
Properties covered by agreements qualifying astalajgases are carried at the lower of the leased
equipment’'s market value or the present value @fmimimum lease payments at the inception datbeof t
lease, with the corresponding amount recorded kgations under capital leases. When an indicatibn
impairment is identified, any excess of the camgyamount of an asset over its recoverable amount is
recognized as a loss. If the recoverable amouwmeases in a subsequent period, the amount prévious
recognized as impairment would be reversed andynézed as a gain. However, the adjusted amount may
not exceed the carrying amount that would have lie¢ermined, net of depreciation, as if no impairtme
loss had been recognized. Significant additiomisewals and betterments incurred during the coctsiru
year are capitalized. Maintenance and repairexensed as incurred.
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Depreciation is computed using the straight-lirethnd over the following estimated service livetand
improvements - 20 years; buildings - 10 to 20 yearachinery and equipment - 3 to 10 years; office
equipment - 3 to 15 years; and leased assetse@8.y

Upon sale or disposal of property, plant and epeipt and assets leased to others, the relatedandst
accumulated depreciation are deducted from theegponding accounts, with any gain or loss recoeded
non-operating gains or losses in the period of satiisposal.

When property, plant and equipment are determiadzk idle or useless, they are transferred toddiets
at the lower of the net realizable value or cagyamount. Depreciation on the idle assets is demli
continuously, and the idle assets are tested fpaiment on a periodical basis.

Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the considergiad for acquisition over the fair value of idéable

net assets acquired. Prior to January 1, 2006jwjtlovas amortized using the straight-line metloyer

the estimated life of 10 years. Effective Janubry2006, pursuant to the newly revised Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 25, “Businessnflioations - Accounting Treatment under Purchase
Method”, goodwill is no longer amortized and instéatested for impairment annually.  If an evertuwrs

or circumstances change which indicated that tivevédue of goodwill is more likely than not beloitg
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognizefl.subsequent reversal of such impairment los®is n
allowed.

Deferred charges consist of technology licenss, feeftware and system design costs and other eharg
The amounts are amortized over the following pexiodTechnology license fees - the shorter of the
estimated life of the technology or the term of tbehnology transfer contract; software and syslesign
costs and other charges - 2 to 5 years. Whendication of impairment is identified, any excesdloé
carrying amount of an asset over its recoverableustis recognized as a loss. If the recoveratvleusmt
increases in a subsequent period, the previousiggrézed impairment loss would be reversed and
recognized as a gain. However, the adjusted anmoayptnot exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of amortization, as if no inpant loss had been recognized.

Expenditures related to research activities andetrelated to development activities that do ne¢tnthe
criteria for capitalization are charged to expernglksn incurred.

Pension Costs

For employees who participate in defined contidgupension plans, pension costs are recorded lased
the actual contributions made to employees’ indigldpension accounts during their service periodor
employees who participate in defined benefit pangilans, pension costs are recorded based on iattuar
calculations.

Government Subsidies

Income-related subsidies from governments aregrgzed in earnings when the requirements for sidssid
are met.
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Income Tax

The Company applies an inter-period allocationittbincome tax whereby deferred income tax assads
liabilities are recognized for the tax effects efmporary differences, net operating loss carryforaand
unused tax credits. Valuation allowances are pieavito the extent, if any, that it is more likeaih not
that deferred income tax assets will not be redlizeA deferred tax asset or liability is classifigsl current
or noncurrent in accordance with the classificatibiits related asset or liability. However, idaferred
tax asset or liability does not relate to an aesdibility in the financial statements, thenstalassified as
either current or noncurrent based on the expdeteyth of time before it is realized or settled.

Any tax credits arising from purchases of machineguipment and technology, research and developme
expenditures, personnel training expenditures, iameistments in important technology-based entezpris
are recognized using the flow-through method.

Adjustments of prior years’ tax liabilities areded to or deducted from the current year’s tax igrom.

Income tax on unappropriated earnings (excludargiags from foreign consolidated subsidiaries) ste
of 10% is expensed in the year of shareholder ajppehich is the year subsequent to the year tharegs
are generated.

Stock-based Compensation

Employee stock options that were granted or medlifn the period from January 1, 2004 to December 3
2007 are accounted for by the interpretations thshg the Accounting Research and Development
Foundation of the Republic of China. The Companppted the intrinsic value method and any
compensation cost determined using this methoecisgnized in earnings over the employee vestingg.er
Employee stock option plans that were granted odifieal after December 31, 2007 are accounted for
using fair value method in accordance with Statémen Financial Accounting Standards No. 39,
“Accounting for Share-based Payment”. The Compdidynot grant or modify employee stock options
since January 1, 2008.

Treasury Stock

Treasury stock is stated at cost and shown aglactlen in shareholders’ equity. When TSMC retires
treasury stock, the treasury stock account is rdland the common stock as well as the capitalusirp
additional paid-in capital are reversed on a pta tzsis. When the book value of the treasurykstoc
exceeds the sum of the par value and additiondtipaiapital, the difference is charged to capstaiplus -
treasury stock transactions and to retained easriorgany remaining amount.

TSMC'’s stock held by its subsidiaries is treatexd teeasury stock and reclassified from investments
accounted for using equity method to treasury stodkie gains resulted from disposal of the treastogk
held by subsidiaries and cash dividends receivedubgidiaries from TSMC are recorded under capital
surplus - treasury stock transactions.

Foreign-currency Transactions

Foreign-currency transactions other than derieationtracts are recorded in New Taiwan dollarshat t
rates of exchange in effect when the transactioomuro Exchange gains or losses derived from
foreign-currency transactions or monetary assets le@bilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognized in earnings.

At the balance sheet date, monetary assets abilities denominated in foreign currencies are heed at
prevailing exchange rates with the resulting gainsses recognized in earnings.
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Translation of Foreign-currency Financial Statemensg

The financial statements of foreign subsidiaries teanslated into New Taiwan dollars at the follogv
exchange rates: Assets and liabilities - spotsraie year-end; shareholders’ equity - historicaésa
income and expenses - average rates during the y&ae resulting translation adjustments are resias
a separate component of shareholders’ equity.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

The Accounting Research and Development Foundg#d®DF) of the R.O.C. revised Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 10, “Accountfog Inventories” (SFAS No. 10) in November 2007,
which requires inventories to be stated at the toak cost or net realizable value item by item.
Inventories are recorded by the specific identif@amethod, first-in, first-out method or weightaderage
method. The last-in, first-out method is no longemitted. The revised SFAS No. 10 should beiegpl
to financial statements for the fiscal years beigigion or after January 1, 2009.

Reclassification

Certain accounts in the consolidated financiaiestents as of and for the year ended December(8, 2
have been reclassified to be consistent with thes@idated financial statements as of and for thary
ended December 31, 2008.

. ACCOUNTING CHANGES

Effective January 1, 2008, the Company adoptedrpnétation 2007-052, “Accounting for Bonuses to
Employees, Directors and Supervisors” issued incl&007 by the ARDF, which requires companies to
record bonuses paid to employees, directors anel@sprs as an expense rather than as an approprait
earnings. The adoption of this interpretation Iteslin a decrease in net income and earningshaee ©f
NT$12,827,595 thousand and NT$0.50, respectivehythie year ended December 31, 2008.

Effective January 1, 2008, the Company adoptete®ent of Financial Accounting Standards No. 39,
“Accounting for Share-based Payment”, which reqirompanies to record share-based payment
transactions in the financial statements at faluea Such a change in accounting principle did heote

any effect on the Company’s consolidated finansiatements as of and for the year ended December 31
2008.

. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

December 31

2008 2007
Cash and deposits in banks $ 185,943,439 $ 84,105,377
Repurchase agreements collateralized by governipogrs 8,670,313 10,067,843
Asset-backed commercial papers - 522,116
Corporate notes - 291,152
$ 194,613,752 $ 94,986,488
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5. FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THRO UGH PROFIT OR LOSS

December 31

2008 2007
Trading financial assets
Publicly traded stocks $ 13,258 $ 1,590,188
Forward exchange contracts 28,423 6,632
Cross currency swap contracts 14,049 35,567

$ 55730 $ 1632387

Trading financial liabilities

Forward exchange contracts $ 35,812 $ 185,583
Cross currency swap contracts 49,375 63,730
$ 85,187 $ 249,313

The Company entered into derivative contractsnduthe years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 to
manage exposures due to the fluctuations of foreigiange rates. The derivative contracts enfated

by the Company did not meet the criteria for hedgeounting. Therefore, the Company did not apply
hedge accounting treatment for its derivative cmts.

Outstanding forward exchange contracts consistéuedollowing:

Contract
Amount
Maturity Date (in Thousands)
December 31, 2008
Sell US$/buy NT$ January 2009 to February 2009  B38%D0/NT$4,558,672
Sell EUR/buy NT$ January 2009 EUR1,500/NT$63,150
Sell RMB/buy US$ January 2009 to April 2009 RMBSE)0JS$8,000
Sell US$/buy JPY January 2009 to February 2009  B$$PY11,800
December 31, 2007
Sell US$/buy NT$ January 2008 US$111,000/NT$3,605,8
Sell EUR$/buy NT$ February 2008 to July 2008 EURAB/NT$2,090,589
Outstanding cross currency swap contracts codsigtthe following:
Range of Range of
Contract Amount Interest Rates  Interest Rates
Maturity Date (in Thousands) Paid Received
December 31, 2008
January 2009 US$307,000/NT$10,061,232 0.54%-5.00% .0096-3.83%
December 31, 2007
January 2008 to February 2008 US$975,000/NT$311880, 3.53%-5.60% 0.02%-3.01%
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For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007,losees and gains arising from financial

assets/liabilities at fair value through profitloss were NT$1,081,019 thousand and NT$63,017 #mls

respectively.

. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

December 31

2008 2007

Agency bonds $ 5696511 % 8,635,796
Corporate bonds 3,279,073 10,745,145
Corporate issued asset-backed securities BB34, 5,357,032
Money market funds 1,000,086 19,212,110
Government bonds 340,893 7,767,637
Publicly traded stocks 279,937 905,254
Structured time deposits - 499,410
Open-end mutual funds - 14,966,675

12,931,373 68,089,059
Current portion (10,898,715 (66,688,368

$ 2032658% 1,400,691

Structured time deposits categorized as availfarisale financial assets consisted of the foll@vin

Principal Carrying
Amount Amount Interest Rate  Maturity Date
December 31, 2007
Step-up callable deposits
Domestic deposits $ 500,006 499,410 1.76% March 2008

The interest rate of the step-up callable depw@sits pre-determined by the Company and the banks.
For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2087p#ls on impairment of available-for-sale finahcia
assets was recognized NT$934,584 thousand amésylectively.

. HELD-TO-MATURITY FINANCIAL ASSETS

December 31

2008 2007
Corporate bonds $ 18,158,679 $ 10,900,247
Government bonds 1,506,572 7,824,425
Structured time deposits 1,643,000 1,500,000
21,308,251 20,224,672
Current portion (5,881,999 (11,526,946

$ 15426252 $ 8,697,726
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Structured time deposits categorized as held-toHntya financial assets consisted of the following:

Principal Interest Range of
Amount Receivable Interest Rates Maturity Date
December 31, 2008
Step-up callable deposits
Foreign deposits $ 1,643,008 660 4.82% December 2011
December 31, 2007
Step-up callable deposits
Domestic deposits $ 1,500,006 5,585 1.77%-1.83%April 2008 to October 2008

As of December 31, 2008, the principal of thectired time deposits that resided in banks locaidétbng
Kong amounted to US$50,000 thousand.

. ALLOWANCES FOR DOUBTFUL RECEIVABLES, SALES RETU RNS AND OTHERS
Movements of the allowance for doubtful receivablere as follows:

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007
Balance, beginning of year $ 701,807 $ 749,888
Effect of inclusion of newly consolidated subsidka - 45
Provision 14,880 2,964
Write-off (260,936 (51,090
Balance, end of year $ 455,751 $ 701,807

Movements of the allowance for sales returns d@hdre were as follows:

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007
Balance, beginning of year $ 4,089,035 % 2,870,802
Effect of inclusion of newly consolidated subsiika - 12,956
Provision 8,825,695 5,705,576
Write-off (6,843,709 (4,500,299
Balance, end of year $ 6,071,026 $ 4,089,035
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9.

10.

INVENTORIES
December 31
2008 2007

Finished goods $ 5863614 $ 4,321,870
Work in process 9,078,716 17,346,862
Raw materials 1,082,700 1,862,543
Supplies and spare parts 1,152,971 1,261,715
17,178,001 24,792,990
Allowance for losses (2,301,356 (930,730
$ 14876,645$% 23,862,260

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING EQUITY METHOD

December 31

2008 2007
% of % of
Carrying  Owner-  Carrying  Owner-
Amount ship Amount ship
Vanguard International Semiconductor Corporation

(VIS) $ 9,787,275 37 $ 11,220,101 37
Systems on Silicon Manufacturing Company Pte Ltd.

(SSMC) 6,808,192 39 9,092,741 39
VisEra Holding Company (VisEra Holding) 2,272761 49 2,204,447 49
Aiconn Technology Corporation (Aiconn) 34,565 44 - -

$ 18,907,158 $ 22,517,289

In August 2007, the Company acquired 169,600 thodishares in VIS for NT$4,927,865 thousand; after
the acquisition, the Company’s percentage of ovmiig VIS increased from 27% to 37%.

For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 200&quiy in earnings of equity method investees of
NT$701,533 thousand and NT$2,507,869 thousand e@zgnized, respectively. The related equity in
earnings of equity method investees was determbeesed on the audited financial statements of the
investees for the same periods as the Company.

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, fair valuesubliply traded stocks in investments accountedi&ing
equity method (VIS) was NT$4,680,264 thousand am@1%$,189,200 thousand, respectively.

Movements of the difference between the cost eéstments and the Company’s share in investees’ net
assets allocated to depreciable assets were awoll

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007
Balance, beginning of year $ 2,589,742 $ 952,159
Addition - 1,968,622
Amortization (599,12) (331,039
Balance, end of year $ 1990621 $ 2,589,742
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12.

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the ending batwf the aforementioned difference allocated to
goodwill were both NT$1,061,885 thousand.

FINANCIAL ASSETS CARRIED AT COST

December 31
2008 2007

$ 3,453,454 $ 3,462,372
161,993 383,247

Non-publicly traded stocks
Mutual funds

$ 3615447 $ 3,845,619

For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 208Tosh on impairment of financial assets carriecoat
was recognized NT$625,471 thousand and NT$54,208#nd, respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Year Ended Decembet, 2008

Balance, Effect of
Beginning of Addition Exchange Rate Balance,
Year (Deductions) Disposals Reclassification ~ Changes End of Year
Cost
Land and land improvements $ 942,198 - $ - $ 821 $ 10,839 $ 953,857
Buildings 118,640,027 12,750,078 (8,524) (706 ) 869,121 132,249,996
Machinery and equipment 646,419,427 50,423,075 (1,320,975) 131,067 1,846,149 697,498,743
Office equipment 11,829,640 997,253 (294,526 ) (167,598) 66,031 12,430,800
Leased asset 652,296 13,832 - - 56,211 722,339
778,483,587 $ 64,184,238 $ (1,624,025 $ (36,416 $ 2,848,351 843,855,735
Accumulated depreciation
Land and land improvements 262,703 28,613 $ - $ - $ 4,582 295,898
Buildings 63,239,922 9,117,602 (8,524) 393 332,306 72,681,699
Machinery and equipment 467,665,072 68,349,425 (1,179,517) (35,055) 1,162,366 535,962,291
Office equipment 8,796,752 1,223,475 (293,433) (84,663 ) 51,678 9,693,809
Leased asset 135,118 33,901 - - 13,551 182,570
540,099,567 $ 78,753,016 $ (1,481,474 $ (119,325 $ 1,564,483 618,816,267
Advance payments and construction in progress 1,868,167 $  (3,205,71) $ - $ (98,013 $ 41,439 18,605,882
Net $ 260,252,187 $ 243,645,350
Year Ended Eember 31, 2007
Effect of
Inclusion of
Balance, Newly Effect of Balance,
Beginning of  Consolidated Exchange Rate  Ending of
Year Subsidiaries Addition Disposals Reclassification =~ Changes Year
Cost
Land and land improvements $ 844,648 101,518 $ - - % - % (3,965)% 942,197
Buildings 112,595,124 71,053 5,522,828 (31,836) (11,518) 494,376 118,640,027
Machinery and equipment 579,825,289 2,430,982 63,828,487 (504,132) 241,750 597,051 646,419,427
Office equipment 10,646,725 547,188 1,064,259 (350,611) (78,898) 977 11,829,640
Leased asset 612,941 - - - - 39,355 652,296
704,524,723 $ 3,150,741 $ 70,415,574 $ (886,579 $ 151,334 $ 1,127,794 __ 778,483,587
Accumulated depreciation
Land and land improvements 234,37% - $ 29,798 $ - % - $ (1,472) 262,703
Buildings 54,288,225 1,111 8,901,910 (30,957) 2,709 76,924 63,239,922
Machinery and equipment 400,579,587 584,690 67,018,215 (255,143) (156,839) (105,438) 467,665,072
Office equipment 7,839,303 76,238 1,232,781 (350,147) (2,362) 939 8,796,752
Leased asset 96,592 - 31,429 - - 7,097 135,118
463,038,084 $ 662,039 $ 77,214,133 $ (636,247 $ (156,499 $ (21,950 540,099,567
Advance payments and construction
in progress 12,607,551$ 480,580 $ 8,474,380 $ - $ 288,805 $ 16,851 21,868,167
Net $ 254,094,190 $ 260,252,187

The Company entered into agreements to leaseifgsldhat qualify as capital leases. The termthef
leases ranged from December 2003 to December 2003 future minimum lease payments as of
December 31, 2008 is NT$803,603 thousand.
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13. DEFERRED CHARGES, NET

Technology license fee
Software and system design costs
Patent and others

Year Ended Decemb@t, 2008

Balance, Effect of Balance,
Beginning of Exchange Ending of
Year Addition  Amortization Disposals  ReclassificatiorRate Changes Year
$ 5,819,148 9,256 $ (1,691,242)$% - $ - $ (11,950)$ 4,125,212
1,449,6031,171,163 (806,096 ) (14,279) 59 1,381 1,801,831
654,850 754,402 (218,957 - - 8,490 1,198,785
$ 7,923,601 $ 1,934,821 $ (2,716,295 $ (14,279 $ 59 $ (2,079 $ 7,125,828

Year Ended 8mmber 31, 2007

Effect of
Inclusion of
Balance, Newly Effect of Balance,
Beginning of Consolidated Exchange Ending of
Year Subsidiaries ~ Addition ~ Amortization Disposals  ReclassificatiorRate Changes Year

Technology license fee $ 4,132,176 201,941 $ 3,515,908 $ (1,739,949)$ - $ (296,423)% 5497 $ 5,819,148
Software and system design costs 1,669,781 2,778 1,275,329 (929,920) (321) (569,648) 1,604 1,449,603
Patent and others 134,960 29,779 311,827 (124,209 (134) 296,423 6,204 654,850

$ 5103.064 $ (2.794.078 $

(455) $ (569,648 $ 13,305 $ 7,923,601

$ 5936915 $ 234,498

14. BONDS PAYABLE

Domestic unsecured bonds:
Issued in January 2002 and repayable in 20028hd in two
installments, 2.75% and 3.00% interest payableially,
respectively

Current portion

December 31

2008 2007

$ 12,500,000 $ 12,500,000

(8,000,000 -

4,500,000 $ 12,500,000

As of December 31, 2008, future principal repaytador the bonds payable were as follows:

Year of Repayment

2009
2012

15. LONG-TERM BANK LOANS

Secured loans:
Repayable from August 2009 in 17 quarterly instahts, annual
interest at 2.56%-3.67% in 2008 and 2.91%-2.992007
US$20,000 thousand, repayable in full in one lwmm payment in
November 2010, annual interest at 3.62% in 20085.88%

in 2007
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Amount

$ 8,000,000
4,500,000

$ 12,500,000

December 31

2008 2007
$ 728,400 $ 630,000
658,719 648,941
(Continued)



December 31
2008 2007

Repayable from December 2007 in 8 semi-annutdlingents,
annual interest at 2.42%-3.23% in 2008 and%-3%20% in 2007 $ 168,750 $ 456,750
Repayable from May 2007 in 16 quarterly instatise annual

interest at 2.42%-3.00% in 2008 and 2.48%-2.852007 37,828 54,641
Repayable from March 2007 in 12 quarterly ingtalhts, annual

interest at 2.53%-3.21% in 2008 and 2.79%-3.162007 32,472 124,944
Repayable from April 2005 in 16 quarterly instadints, annual

interest at 2.42%-3.00% in 2008 and 2.51%-2.852007 8,995 44,975
Repayable from February 2005 in 17 quarterlyailhsients, annual

interest at 2.56%-3.15% in 2008 and 2.65%-4.5832007 7,710 40,670

Unsecured loans:
Science Park Administration (SPA) SOC loan, rejpés/ from

October 2003 in 20 quarterly installments, ies¢-free - 2,088
1,642,874 2,003,009

Current portion (222,399 (280,813
$ 1420476 $ 1,722,196
(Concluded)

Pursuant to the loan agreements, financial ratsulated based on annual audited financial seté&of
TSMC-Shanghai as well as semi-annual and annuahdial statements of XinTec must comply with
predetermined financial covenants. As of Decentier 2008, TSMC Shanghai and XinTec were in
compliance with all such financial covenants.

As of December 31, 2008, future principal repaytaédor the long-term bank loans were as follows:

Year of Repayment Amount
2009 $ 222,398
2010 916,847
2011 212,269
2012 174,816
2013 and thereatfter 116,544
$ 1642874

. OTHER LONG-TERM PAYABLES

December 31
2008 2007

Payables for acquisition of property, plant andipepent (Note 28i) $ 8,579,726 7,908,516
Payables for royalties 2,095,046 5,174,644
10,674,772 13,083,160

Current portion (classified under accrued expeasésother current
liabilities) (1,126,546 (3,673,183

$ 9548226 $ 9,409,978
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17.

The payables for royalties were primarily attrédele to several license arrangements that the Qoympa
entered into for certain semiconductor-relatedtate

As of December 31, 2008, future payments for ofitveg-term payables were as follows:

Year of Payment Amount
2009 $ 1,126,546
2010 541,320
2011 427,180
2012 -
2013 and thereafter 8,579,726
$ 10,674,772

PENSION PLANS

The pension mechanism under the Labor PensionisfAd¢emed a defined contribution plan. Pursuant to
the Act, TSMC, GUC, XinTec and Mutual-Pak have mawlenthly contributions equal to 6% of each
employee’s monthly salary to employees’ pensioroants. Furthermore, TSMC North America, TSMC
Shanghai, TSMC Europe and TSMC Canada are requisedocal regulations to make monthly
contributions at certain percentages of the badarg of their employees. Pursuant to the afor¢imeed

Act and local regulations, the Company recognizeaspn costs of NT$779,612 thousand and NT$725,789
thousand for the years ended December 31, 2008G0W respectively.

TSMC, GUC and XinTec have defined benefit plandasrthe Labor Standards Law that provide benefits
based on an employee’s service years and averagéhlyjnsalary for the six-month period prior to
retirement. The aforementioned companies contilntamount equal to 2% of salaries paid each month
to their respective pension funds (the Funds), Wwhice administered by the Labor Pension Fund
Supervisory Committee (the Committee) and depogiteithe Committee’s name in the Bank of Taiwan
(originally the Central Trust of China, which wasablved after merger with the Bank of Taiwan oly du
2007).

Pension information on the defined benefit plansummarized as follows:

a. Components of net periodic pension cost foytar

2008 2007
Service cost $ 151,656 $ 184,275
Interest cost 171,345 156,391
Projected return on plan assets (68,373) (51,309)
Amortization 4,461 35,853
Net periodic pension cost $ 259,089 $ 325,210
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b. Reconciliation of funded status of the pland accrued pension cost at December 31, 2008 arid 200

d.

e.

a. A reconciliation of income tax expense basedionoome before income tax” at statutory rates and

Benefit obligation
Vested benefit obligation
Nonvested benefit obligation
Accumulated benefit obligation
Additional benefits based on future salaries
Projected benefit obligation

Fair value of plan assets

Funded status

Unrecognized net transition obligation

Prior service cost

Unrecognized net loss

Accrued pension cost

Vested benefit

Actuarial assumptions at December 31, 2008280d
Discount rate used in determining present values
Future salary increase rate

Expected rate of return on plan assets

Contributions to the Funds for the year

Payments from the Funds for the year

18. INCOME TAX

income tax currently payable was as follows:

Income tax expense based on “income before intariet

statutory rates
The effect of the following:
Tax-exempt income
Temporary and permanent differences
Others
Additional tax at 10% on unappropriated earnings
Net operating loss carryforwards used
Income tax credits used

Income tax currently payable
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2008 2007

$ 114,930 $ 120,146
4,182,434 3,479,132
4,297,364 3,599,278

3,263,413 2,444,451
7,560,777 6,043,729
(2,487,577 _ (2,238,997
5,073,200 3,804,732
(1032  (109,873)
169,216 -
(1,439,509 (41,995

$ 3,701,584 $ 3,652,864
$ 126,259 $ 120,146

2.00%-2.50% 2.75%-3.00%
2.00%-3.00% 2.00%-3.00%
2.25%2.5@.50%-3.00%

$ 808 $ 209,423

$ 28,990 15,003

Years Ended December 31
2008 2007

$ 27,970,388 $ 30,829,431

(9,670,500)  (7,668,367)
2,122,899  (150,946)
44,073 -
13,926 2,710,909
(205)234  (814,120)
(11,109,313 _ (13,899,628
$ 9,166,239 11,007,279



b.

e.

Income tax expense consisted of the following:

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007

Income tax currently payable $ 9,166,239 11,007,279
Other income tax adjustments (502,668) (240,779)
Net change in deferred income tax assets

Investment tax credits 1,060,599 5,122,450

Temporary differences (2,129,121) (800,374)

Net operating loss carryforwards 411,368 841,502

Valuation allowance 2,942,592 (4,220,453
Income tax expense $ 10,949,009 $ 11,709,626

Net deferred income tax assets consisted dbtlmving:

December 31

2008 2007
Current deferred income tax assets
Investment tax credits $ 2885762 % 5,372,761
Temporary differences 1,556,474 674,154
Valuation allowance (472,906 (474,58)

$ 3,969,330 % 5,572,334

Noncurrent deferred income tax assets

Investment tax credits $ 11,311,852 % 9,885,452
Temporary differences (1,628,279) (2,848,052)
Net operating loss carryforwards 3,588,968 3,963,123
Valuation allowance (6,635,669 (3,687,240

$ 6,636873% 7,313,283

As of December 31, 2008, the net operating lcasytorwards generated by WaferTech, TSMC
Development, TSMC Technology and Mutual-Pak wouplire on various dates through 2026.

Integrated income tax information:

The balance of the imputation credit account JGATSMC as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 was
NT$521,634 thousand and NT$3,012,848 thousandecasply.

The estimated creditable ratio for distributidnT®&MC’s earnings of 2008 and 2007 was 0.51% and
9.83%, respectively.

The imputation credit allocated to the sharehalde based on its balance as of the date of didide
distribution. The estimated creditable ratio ménarmge when the actual distribution of imputation
credit is made.

All of TSMC'’s earnings generated prior to Debem31, 1997 have been appropriated.
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f. As of December 31, 2008, investment tax creafitfSMC, GUC, XinTec and Mutual-Pak consisted of

the following:

Total Remaining
Creditable Creditable  Expiry
Law/Statute Item Amount Amount Year
Statute for Upgrading Purchase of machinery and $22,242 $ - 2008
Industries equipment 233,915 5,921 2009
6,178,371 114,761 2010
4,664,206 4,664,206 2011
2,664,162 2,664,162 2012

$ 13,762,896 $ 7,449,050

Statute for Upgrading Research and development 1909,834 $ - 2008
Industries expenditures 1,173,395 - 2009
3,263,421 673,789 2010

2,825,115 2,825,115 2011
3,188,670 3,188,670 2012

$ 11,460435% 6,687,574
Statute for Upgrading Personnel training expendgur $ 21,998 $ - 2009
Industries 23,791 23,183 2010
37,021 37,021 2011
786 786 2012

$ 83,596 $ 60,990

g. The profits generated from the following prageof TSMC, GUC and XinTec are exempt from income
tax for a five-year period:

Tax-Exemption Period

Construction of Fab 14 - Module A 2006 to 2010
Construction of Fab 12 - Module B and expansioRad 14 - Module A 2007 to 2011
Construction of Fab 14 - Module B and expansibRai 12 and others 2008 to 2012
2003 plant expansion of GUC 2007 to 2011
2003 plant expansion of XinTec 2007 to 2011

h. The tax authorities have examined income taxme of TSMC through 2006.
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19. LABOR COST, DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

Year Ended December 31, 2008

Classified as
Classified as  Operating
Cost of Sales  Expenses Total
Labor cost
Salary and bonus $ 19,574,249 15,654,567 $ 35,228,816
Labor and health insurance 766,952 489,601 1,256,553
Pension 634,730 403,962 1,038,692
Meal 474,048 188,407 662,455
Welfare 640,817 273,055 913,872
Others 262,144 171,631 433,775
$ 22,352,940 $ 17,181,223 $ 39,534,163
Depreciation $ 74,703,223 $ 4,033,588 $ 78,736,811
Amortization $ 1837540 $ 878,755 $ 2,716,295
Year Ended December 31, 2007
Classified as
Classified as  Operating
Cost of Sales  Expenses Total
Labor cost
Salary $ 11,990,153 $ 7,562,966 $ 19,553,119
Labor and health insurance 685,922 416,131 1,102,053
Pension 646,999 404,128 1,051,127
Meal 463,453 180,474 643,927
Welfare 249,133 266,412 515,545
Others 176,192 226,747 402,939
$ 14,211,852 $ 9,056,858 $ 23,268,710
Depreciation $ 73,070,781 $ 4,100,533 $ 77,171,314
Amortization $ 1849917 $ 943,064 $ 2,792,981

20. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

As of December 31, 2008, 1,092,053 thousand ADISMC were traded on the NYSE. The number of
common shares represented by the ADSs was 5,46@@85and (one ADS represents five common
shares).

Capital surplus can only be used to offset a daficder the Company Law. However, the capitaplis
generated from donations and the excess of thanssuprice over the par value of capital stockiuiog

the stock issued for new capital, mergers, coertionds and the surplus from treasury stock aetims)
may be appropriated as stock dividends, whichiarigeld to a certain percentage of TSMC's paid-ipitzd.

Also, the capital surplus from long-term investmenaty not be used for any purpose.
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Capital surplus consisted of the following:

December 31

2008 2007

From merger $ 22,805,390 $ 24,003,546
Additional paid-in capital 17,962,468 19,526,492
From convertible bonds 8,893,190 9,360,424
From long-term investments 214,152 351,215
Donations 55 55
From treasury stock transactions - 490,950

$ 49,875,255 $ 53,732,682

TSMC'’s Atrticles of Incorporation provide that, whallocating the net profits for each fiscal yeB§MC
shall first offset its losses in previous years Hrah set aside the following items accordingly:

a. Legal capital reserve at 10% of the profits ¢efer, until the accumulated legal capital resezgaals
TSMC'’s paid-in capital;

b. Special capital reserve in accordance withveglelaws or regulations or as requested by theoaities
in charge;

c. Bonus to directors and bonus to employees M@ $f not more than 0.3% and not less than 1% ef th
remainder, respectively. Directors who also sexseexecutive officers of TSMC are not entitled to
receive the bonus to directors. TSMC may issuekgbonuses to employees of an affiliated company
meeting the conditions set by the Board of Directn, by the person duly authorized by the Board of
Directors;

d. Any balance left over shall be allocated acitwydo the resolution of the shareholders’ meeting.

TSMC'’s Articles of Incorporation also provide thatofits of TSMC may be distributed by way of cash
dividend and/or stock dividend. However, distribatof profits shall be made preferably by way aélo
dividend. Distribution of profits may also be maule way of stock dividend; provided that the r&to
stock dividend shall not exceed 50% of the totsirdiution.

Any appropriations of the profits are subjectedhareholders’ approval in the following year.

For the year ended December 31, 2008, TSMC hasded bonuses to employees and directors with a
charge to earnings of approximately 15% of netimeo If the actual amounts subsequently resolved by
the shareholders differ from the proposed amounthid Board of Directors, the differences are rdedrin

the year of shareholders’ resolution as a changeceounting estimate. If stock bonuses are reddlvée
distributed to employees, the number of sharesierthined by dividing the amount of bonuses by the
closing price (after considering the effect of casid stock dividends) of the shares on the dayepiag

the shareholders’ meeting.

TSMC no longer has supervisors since January @7.20The required duties of supervisors are being
fulfilled by the Audit Committee.

The appropriation for legal capital reserve sballmade until the reserve equals TSMC'’s paid-iritalap
The reserve may be used to offset a deficit, odibgibuted as dividends and bonuses for the poritio
excess of 50% of the paid-in capital if TSMC hasumappropriated earnings and the reserve balarse ha
exceeded 50% of TSMC's paid-in capital. The Complaaw also prescribes that, when the reserve has
reached 50% of TSMC's paid-in capital, up to 50%hef reserve may be transferred to capital.
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A special capital reserve equivalent to the néitdelance of the other components of sharehdleersty
(for example, cumulative translation adjustments amrealized loss on financial instruments, buludiag
treasury stock) shall be made from unappropriasediegs pursuant to existing regulations promulgdjde

the Securities and Futures Bureau (SFB).
that the net debit balance reverses.

Any sppeeserve appropriated may be reversed to thenexte

The appropriations of earnings for 2007 and 2086 lbeen approved in TSMC's shareholders’ meetings
held on June 13, 2008 and May 7, 2007, respectivelyne appropriations and dividends per share asgre

follows:

Legal capital reserve

Special capital reserve

Bonus to employees - in cash
Bonus to employees - in stock

Dividends Per Share

Appropriation of Earnings (NT$)

For Fiscal For Fiscal
Year 2007Year 2006

For Fiscal For Fiscal
Year 2007 Year 2006

$ 10,917,708 12,700,973
(237,693)  (11,192)
3,939,883 4,572,798
3,939,883 4,572,798

Cash dividends to shareholders 76,881,31177,489,064  $3.00 $3.00
Stock dividends to shareholders 512,542 516,594 0.02 0.02
Bonus to directors and supervisors 176,890 285,800

$ 96,130,525 $100,126,835

TSMC'’s shareholders meetings held on June 13, 20@8May 7, 2007 also resolved to distribute stock
dividends out of capital surplus in the amount of$¥68,813 thousand and NT$774,891 thousand,
respectively.

The amounts of the appropriations of earning@f7 and 2006 were consistent with the resolutifribe
meetings of the Board of Directors held on Februy2008 and February 6, 2007, respectively. hdf t
above bonus to employees, directors and supendisatdeen paid entirely in cash and charged tdregn

of 2007 and 2006, the basic earnings per sharer (@itome tax) for the years ended December 317 200
and 2006 shown in the respective financial statésnenuld have decreased from NT$4.14 to NT$3.84 and
NT$4.93 to NT$4.56, respectively. The sharesibisted as a bonus to employees represented 1.48% an
1.77% of TSMC'’s total outstanding common sharesf&cember 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

As of January 17, 2009, the Board of Directorsii@gesolved the appropriation for earnings of®00

The information about the appropriations of botmemployees, directors and supervisors is availabl
the Market Observation Post System website.

Under the Integrated Income Tax System that becaffextive on January 1, 1998, R.O.C. resident

shareholders are allowed a tax credit for theipproonate share of the income tax paid by TSMC on
earnings generated since January 1, 1998.
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21. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

TSMC’s Employee Stock Option Plans, consistinghef TSMC 2004 Plan, TSMC 2003 Plan, and TSMC
2002 Plan, were approved by the SFB on Januar§(g, Dctober 29, 2003 and June 25, 2002, respbctive
The maximum number of options authorized to be tggminder the TSMC 2004 Plan, TSMC 2003 Plan
and TSMC 2002 Plan was 11,000 thousand, 120,00@s#mal and 100,000 thousand, respectively, with
each option eligible to subscribe for one commaaratof TSMC when exercisable. The options may be
granted to qualified employees of TSMC or any sfdomestic or foreign subsidiaries, in which TSMC'’s
shareholding with voting rights, directly or inditly, is more than fifty percent (50%). The opsoof all

the plans are valid for ten years and exercisabtergain percentages subsequent to the secondeasauiy

of the grant date. Under the terms of the plams,aptions are granted at an exercise price equidlet
closing price of TSMC’s common shares listed onTtB& on the grant date.

Options of the plans that had never been grantéada been granted but subsequently canceled tpacéx
as of December 31, 2008.

Information about TSMC'’s outstanding options fbe tyears ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 was as
follows:

Weighted-
average
Number of Exercise
Options Price

(in Thousands)  (NT$)
Year ended December 31, 2008

Balance, beginning of year 41,875 $35.6
Options granted 767 35.2
Options exercised (6,027) 37.7
Options canceled (381) 46.5
Balance, end of year 36,234 35.3

Year ended December 31, 2007

Balance, beginning of year 52,814 $37.9
Options granted 1,094 37.9
Options exercised (10,988) 39.8
Options canceled (1,045 45.9
Balance, end of year 41,875 37.4

The number of outstanding options and exercisseprhave been adjusted to reflect the appropriatdn
earnings by TSMC in accordance with the plans. Tmp#ions granted were the result of the
aforementioned adjustment.
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As of December 31, 2008, information about TSM@isstanding and exercisable options was as follows:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
average average average
Range of Number of Remaining  Exercise = Number of  Exercise
Exercise Options (in Contractual Price Options (in Price
Price (NT$) Thousands) Life (Years) (NT$)  Thousands) (NT$)
$24.2-$33.9 25,633 4.15 $ 310 25,633 4.03
38.2- 50.4 10,601 5.89 45.8 8,669 45.5
36,234 35.3 34,302 34.6

GUC’s Employee Stock Option Plans, consisting g GUC 2003 Plan and GUC 2002 Plan, were
approved by its Board of Directors on January ZB)3®and July 1, 2002, respectively. The maximum
number of options authorized to be granted undeiGC 2003 Plan and GUC 2002 Plan was 7,535 and
5,000, respectively, with each option eligible tiscribe for one thousand common shares of GUC when
exercisable. The options may be granted to gadléimployees of GUC. The options of all the plaes
valid for six years and exercisable at certain @etages subsequent to the second anniversary gfahe
date.

Moreover, the GUC 2007 Plan, GUC 2006 Plan, andC&004 Plan were approved by the SFB on
November 28, 2007, July 3, 2006, and August 16426@rant a maximum of 1,999 options, 3,665 otion
and 2,500 options, respectively, with each optiligil#e to subscribe for one thousand common shafes

GUC when exercisable. The options may be grantedualified employees of GUC or any of its
subsidiaries. Except for the options of the GUO&®lan which are valid until August 15, 2011, the
options of the other two GUC option Plans are vdbd six years. Options of all three Plans are
exercisable at certain percentages subsequerd tettond anniversary of the grant date.

Information about GUC's outstanding options foe Years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 was as
follows:

Weighted-
average
Exercise
Number of Prices
Options (NT$)
Year ended December 31, 2008
Balance, beginning of year 7,598 $60.3
Options granted 284 14.8
Options exercised (2,115) 14.0
Options canceled (210) 168.4
Balance, end of year 5,657 66.6
Year ended December 31, 2007
Balance, beginning of year 7,342 $14.0
Options granted 2,053 183.6
Options exercised (1,563) 10.2
Options canceled (234) 13.5
Balance, end of year 7,598 60.3
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The number of outstanding options and exerciseeprhave been adjusted to reflect the appropriation
earnings by GUC in accordance with the plans. dptens granted were the result of the aforemeation
adjustment.

As of December 31, 2008, information about GUGQItstanding and exercisable options was as follows:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
average average average
Range of Remaining Exercise Exercise
Exercise Number of Contractual Price Number of Price
Price (NT$) Options  Life (Years) (NT$) Options (NT$)
$8.9-$10.5 1,450 2.75 $ 9.2 343 $ 99
16.4 2,361 2.67 16.4 528 16.4
182.0 1,746 5.00 182.0 - -
5,657 66.6 871 13.9

XinTec’s Employee Stock Option Plans, consistinghe XinTec 2007 Plan and XinTec 2006 Plan, were

approved by the SFB on June 26, 2007 and July (8,2@spectively. The maximum number of options

authorized to be granted under the XinTec 2007 BlahXinTec 2006 Plan was 6,000 thousand each, with
each option eligible to subscribe for one commaaretof XinTec when exercisable. The options may be
granted to qualified employees of XinTec or anytefsubsidiaries. The options of all the plans\axid

for ten years and exercisable at certain percestagiesequent to the second anniversary of the dadet

Information about XinTec’s outstanding options fbe years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 was as
follows:

Weighted-
average
Number of Exercise
Options Price

(in Thousands)  (NT$)
Year ended December 31, 2008

Balance, beginning of year 9,642 $15.1
Options exercised (728) 12.4
Options canceled (1,472 15.5
Balance, end of year 7,442 14.8

Year ended December 31, 2007

Balance, beginning of year 4,968 $13.0
Options granted 5,555 17.3
Options canceled (881) 14.1
Balance, end of year 9,642 15.1

The exercise prices have been adjusted to retfhecappropriation of earnings by XinTec in accoman
with the plans.
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As of December 31, 2008, information about XinBaatitstanding and exercisable options was as fellow

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
average average average
Range of Number of Remaining  Exercise = Number of  Exercise
Exercise Options (in Contractual Price Options (in Price
Price (NT$) Thousands) Life (Years) (NT$) Thousands) (NT$)
$12.4-$14.3 4,050 7.90 $12.7 1,425 $12.
15.4- 19.4 3,392 8.73 17.4 - -
7,442 14.8 1,425 12.4

No compensation cost was recognized under thmsintrvalue method for the years ended December 31,
2008 and 2007. Had the Company used the fair Viahsed method to evaluate the options using the
Black-Scholes model, the assumptions and pro foasalts of the Company for the years ended December

31, 2008 and 2007 would have been as follows:

2008 2007
Assumptions:

TSMC Expected dividend yield 1.00%-3.44%  1.00%A4%0
Expected volatility 43.77%-46.15%43.77%-46.15%
Risk free interest rate 3.07%-3.85%  3.07%-3.85%
Expected life 5 years 5 years

GUC Expected dividend yield 0.00%-0.60%  0.00%H@066
Expected volatility 22.65%-45.47922.65%-45.47%
Risk free interest rate 2.12%-2.56%  2.12%-2.56%
Expected life 3-6 years 3-6 years

XinTec Expected dividend yield 0.80% 0.80%
Expected volatility 31.79%-47.429%31.79%-47.42%
Risk free interest rate 1.88%-2.45% 1.88%-2.45%
Expected life 3 years 3 years

Net income attributable to shareholders of thempar

As reported $ 99,933,168 $ 109,177,093

100,037,622 109,054,923

Pro forma
Earnings per share (EPS) - after income tax (NT$):
Basic EPS as reported $3.86 $4.06
Pro forma basic EPS 3.86 4.06
Diluted EPS as reported 3.83 4.06
3.83 4.06

Pro forma diluted EPS
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22. TREASURY STOCK
(Shares in Thousands)
Beginning Stock Ending

Shares Addition Dividends Retirement Shares
Year ended December 31, 2008

Parent company stock held by subsidiaries 34,096 - 171 34,267 -
Repurchase under share buyback plan 800,005,549 - 1,295,549 -
834,096 _ 495,549 171 1,329,816 -

Year ended December 31, 2007

Parent company stock held by subsidiaries 33,926 - 170 - 34,096
Repurchase under share buyback plan 800,000 - - 800,000
33,926 _ 800,000 170 - 834,096

As of December 31, 2007, the book value of thasiey stock was NT$49,385,032 thousand; the market
value was NT$51,713,947 thousand. TSMC’s commaaresh held by subsidiaries were treated as
treasury stock and the holders are entitled taithas of shareholders, with the exception of vptiights.

TSMC held a meeting of the Board of Directors aww&imber 13, 2007 and approved a share buyback plan
to repurchase the TSMC’s common shares up to 80G0Ares listed on the TSE during the period from
November 14, 2007 to January 13, 2008 for the bek/paice in the range from NT$43.2 to NT$94.2.
TSMC had repurchased 800,000 thousand common shatdisthe treasury stock repurchased under this
share buyback plan was retired in February 2008.

TSMC held a meeting of the Board of Directors oayM .3, 2008 and approved a share buyback plan to
repurchase the TSMC’s common shares up to 500f@afisand shares listed on the TSE during the period
from May 14, 2008 to July 13, 2008 for the buybacice in the range from NT$48.25 to NT$100.50.
TSMC had repurchased 216,674 thousand common shatdisthe treasury stock repurchased under this
share buyback plan was retired in August 2008.

TSMC held a meeting of the Board of Directors argist 12, 2008 and approved a share buyback plan to
repurchase the TSMC’s common shares up to 283@fisand shares listed on the TSE during the period
from August 13, 2008 to October 12, 2008 for thghdack price in the range from NT$42.85 to NT$86.20.
TSMC had repurchased 278,875 thousand common shaidisthe treasury stock repurchased under this
share buyback plan was retired in November 2008.

TSMC merged Chi Cherng and Hsin Ruey in the tgidrter of 2008. TSMC’s common shares held by
Chi Cherng and Hsin Ruey in the number of 34,26nshand shares were retired on August 2008.
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23. EARNINGS PER SHARE
EPS is computed as follows:

Number of EPS (NT$)

Amounts (Numerator) Shares Before After
Before After (Denominator) Income Income
Income Tax Income Tax (in Thousands) Tax Tax

Year ended December 31, 2008

Basic EPS
Earnings attributable to shareholders of thengare $110,847,835% 99,933,168 25,909,643 _$ 4.28% 3.86
Effect of dilutive potential common shares

Bonus to employees - - 181,943
Stock options - - 15,090
Diluted EPS

Earnings attributable to shareholders of themgare
(including effect of dilutive potential commshares) $110,847,835$ 99,933,168 26,106,676 $ 4.25 $ 3.83

Year ended December 31, 2007

Basic EPS
Earnings attributable to shareholders of thergare $120,890,678 $109,177,093 26,870,684 _$ 4.50$ 4.06
Effect of dilutive potential common shares
Stock options - - 21,652

Diluted EPS
Earnings attributable to shareholders of themgare
(including effect of dilutive potential commshares) $120,890,678 $109,177,093 26,892,336 $ 4.50 $ 4.06

As discussed in Note 3, effective January 1, 2QB8, Company adopted Interpretation 2007-052 that
requires companies to record bonuses paid to emptogs an expense rather than as an appropridtion o
earnings. If the Company may settle the obligabgrcash, by issuing share, or in combination dhbo
cash and shares, potential shares from bonus tdogegs which will be settled in shares should be
included in the weighted average number of shanéstanding in calculation of diluted EPS, if theasds
have a dilutive effect. The number of sharestisneged by dividing the amount of bonus to emplsykg

the closing price (after consideration of the aveteffect of dividends) of the common shares oa th
balance sheet date. Such dilutive effect of theng@l shares needs to be included in the caloulaif
diluted EPS until the shares of employee bonuseselved in the shareholders’ meeting in the foifgv
year.

The average number of shares outstanding for Ef&lation has been retroactively adjusted for the

issuance of stock dividends and employee stock demu This adjustment caused both of the basic and
diluted after income tax EPS for the year endedebdaer 31, 2007 to decrease from NT$4.14 to NT$4.06.
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24. DISCLOSURES FOR FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a.

Fair values of financial instruments were die¥es:

December 31

2008 2007

Carrying Carrying

Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profitosss $ 55,730 % 55,730 $ 1,632,387 $ 1,632,387
Available-for-sale financial assets 12,938,37 12,931,373 68,089,059 68,089,059
Held-to-maturity financial assets 21,308,251 21,457,008 20,224,672 20,192,188
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through priofir loss 85,187 85,187 249,313 249,313
Bonds payable (including current portion) 19,500 12,612,423 12,500,000 12,669,987
Long-term bank loans (including current portion) 1,642,874 1,642,874 2,003,009 2,003,009
Other long-term payables (including current motli 10,674,772 10,674,772 13,083,160 13,083,160
Obligations under capital leases 722,339 722,339 652,296 652,296

Methods and assumptions used in estimating/&dires of financial instruments

1) The aforementioned financial instruments do inolude cash and cash equivalents, receivables,
other financial assets, refundable deposits, pagatdnd payables to contractors and equipment
suppliers and guarantee deposits. The carryinguateoof these financial instruments
approximate their fair values due to their shorturiies.

2) Except for derivatives and structured time adds, fair values of financial assets at fair ealu
through profit or loss, available-for-sale and higldnaturity financial assets were based on their
quoted market prices.

3) For those derivatives and structured time depavith no quoted market prices, their fair valage
determined using valuation techniques incorporagsignates and assumptions that were consistent
with prevailing market conditions.

4) Fair value of bonds payable was based on tjusited market price.

5) Fair values of long-term bank loans, othemglterm payables and obligations under capital kase
were based on the present value of expected aash, flvhich approximate their carrying amounts.

The changes in fair value of derivatives caitravhich were outstanding as of December 31, 20@8
2007 estimated using valuation techniques weregrezed as valuation losses of NT$42,715 thousand
and NT$207,114 thousand, respectively.

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, financiaktasgexposed to fair value interest rate risk were
NT$34,002,159 thousand and NT$87,450,676 thousaspectively; financial liabilities exposed to
fair value interest rate risk were NT$12,585,183uand and NT$12,749,313 thousand, respectively,
and financial assets exposed to cash flow intemst risk were nil and NT$7,171,120 thousand,
respectively, and financial liabilities exposed d¢ash flow interest rate risk were NT$1,642,874
thousand and NT$2,000,921 thousand, respectively.
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e.

Movements of the unrealized gain/loss on firnostruments for the years ended December 308 20
and 2007 were as follows:

Year Ended December 31, 2008

From
From Available-
Available- for-sale
for-sale Financial

Financial  Assets Held
Assets by Investees Total

Balance, beginning of year $ 627,838 53,159 $ 680,997
Recognized directly in shareholders’ equity 8,689 (142,088) 596,481
Removed from shareholders’ equity and recognized
earnings (1,564,820 - (1,564,820
Balance, end of year $ (198413 (88,929 $ (287,349
Year Ended December 31, 2007
From

From Available-

Available- for-sale

for-sale Financial

Financial  Assets Held
Assets by Investees Total

Balance, beginning of year $ 386,013 175,598 $ 561,615
Recognized directly in shareholders’ equity 9,823 (122,439) 727,384
Removed from shareholders’ equity and recognized

earnings (608,002 - (608,002
Balance, end of year $ 627,838 53,159 $ 680,997

Information about financial risk

1) Market risk. The publicly traded stocks catgzed as financial assets at fair value througifitr

or loss are exposed to market price fluctuatiorighe derivative financial instruments categorized

as financial assets/liabilities at fair value thgbuprofit or loss are mainly used to hedge the
exchange rate fluctuations of foreign-currency @saad liabilities; therefore, the market risk of

derivatives will be offset by the foreign exchanggk of these hedged items. Available-for-sale

financial assets held by the Company are mainlgdfiiterest-rate debt securities; therefore, the
fluctuations in market interest rates would resulthanges in fair value of these debt securities.
Subiject to recent turmoil in the global financiahnket, the Company evaluated its financial assets
and determined that certain impairment for its tlsaeked securities is other-than-temporary.

The Company had appropriately recognized relatgadiment losses.

2) Credit risk. Credit risk represents the ptitdnhoss that would be incurred by the Companthd
counter-parties or third-parties breached contradi&nancial instruments with positive fair values
at the balance sheet date are evaluated for areHlit Subject to recent turmoil in the global
financial market, the Company evaluated the finanioistruments for any possible counter-party or
third-party default. As a result of the evaluatitihe Company determined that certain financial
instruments are exposed to credit risk and hadogpiately recognized related impairment losses.
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3) Liquidity risk. The Company has sufficientevgting capital to meet cash needs upon settlement
of derivative financial instruments, bonds payadohel bank loans. Therefore, the liquidity risk is
low.

4) Cash flow interest rate risk. The Companyniyainvests in fixed-interest-rate debt securities.
Therefore, cash flows are not expected to fluctgaeificantly due to changes in market interest
rates.

25. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Except as disclosed in the consolidated finarate@ements and other notes, the following is a samrof

significant related party transactions:

a. Investees of TSMC

VIS (accounted for using equity method)

SSMC (accounted for using equity method)

b. VisEra Technology Company, Ltd. (VisEra), adiiact investee accounted for using equity method.

c. Others

Related parties over which the Company exeraggsficant influence but with which the Company

had no material transactions.

2008 2007
Amount Amount
For the year
Sales
VIS 80,067 59,163
VisEra 30,821 739,879
SSMC 1,869 2,928
112,757 801,970
Purchases
SSMC 4,441,795 5,468,410
VIS 3,260,160 4,208,207
VisEra 594 594
7,702,549 9,677,211
Manufacturing expenses
VisEra 133,051 63,933
VIS - 366
133,051 64,299
Research and development expenses
VisEra 518 43,056
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2008 2007

Amount % Amount %
Non-operating income and gains
VIS (primarily technical service income; see
Note 28f) $ 296,250 3 % 346,260 3
SSMC (primarily technical service income; see
Note 28e) 244,865 2 290,586 2
VisEra 101,605 1 321,819 3
$ 642,720 6 $ 958,665 8
As of December 31
Receivables
VisEra $ 407 100 $ 10,885 100
Other receivables
SSMC $ 56,949 57 $ 84,778 35
VIS 42969 43 118,749 49
VisEra - - 40,093 _ 16

$ 99,918 _100 $ 243,620 _100

Payables
VIS $ 317,890 65 $ 839,624 56
SSMC 162,807 33 655,029 44
VisEra 9,160 2 8,723 -

489,857 _100 $ 1,503,376 _100

Deferred credits

VisEra $ - $ 62,175 5

The sales prices and payment terms to relatecepavere not significantly different from thosesafles to
third parties. For other related party transaciqorices and terms were determined in accordarite w
mutual agreements.

TSMC deferred the net gains (classified under rdefiecredits) derived from sales of property, pland
equipment to VisEra, and then recognized such gailassified under non-operating income and gains)
over the depreciable lives of the disposed assets.

TSMC leased certain buildings and facilities tsifia. The related rental income was classifieceund
non-operating income. The lease terms and prieze determined in accordance with mutual agreements
The lease agreement between TSMC and VisEra exipirgril 2008.

Compensation of directors and management personnel

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007
Salaries, incentives and special compensation $352,227 $ 275,219
Bonus 705,376 1,096,233

$ 1057603% 1,371,452
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26.

27.

The information about the compensation of directord management personnel is available in the annua
report for the shareholders’ meeting. Total consption expense for the year ended December 31, 2008
includes estimated bonuses to employees and diseatdhe Company that relate to 2008 but will édp

in the following year. The actual amount will bmalized and approved upon the resolution of the
shareholders’ meeting in 2009. The total compémsdor the year ended December 31, 2007 included
the bonuses appropriated from earnings of 2007 hwiigs approved by the shareholders’ meeting held in
2008.

PLEDGED OR MORTGAGED ASSETS

The Company provided certain assets as collat@ahly for long-term bank loans and land lease
agreements, which were as follows:

December 31

2008 2007
Other financial assets $ 33,377 $ 48,929
Property, plant and equipment, net 4,032,571 5,733,263

$ 4065948 $ 5,782,192

SIGNIFICANT LONG-TERM LEASES

The Company leases several parcels of land aikgffemises from the SPA and Jhongli Industriak Pa
Service Center. These operating leases expireagoug dates from December 2009 to December 2028
and can be renewed upon expiration.

The Company entered into lease agreements faffite premises and certain equipment located @ th
United States, Europe, Japan, Shanghai and TaiwBmese operating leases expire between 2009 and
2018 and can be renewed upon expiration.

As of December 31, 2008, future lease paymente agffollows:

Year Amount
2009 $ 556,596
2010 489,115
2011 430,132
2012 420,978
2013 and thereafter 3,009,030
$ 4,905,851
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28. SIGNIFICANT COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Significant commitments and contingencies of ttmm@any as of December 31, 2008, excluding those
disclosed in other notes, were as follows:

a.

On June 20, 2004, TSMC and Philips (Philipgegamwith its semiconductor company which was
renamed as NXP B.V. in September 2006) amendeddbknical Cooperation Agreement, which was
originally signed on May 12, 1997. The amendedhhemal Cooperation Agreement is for five years
beginning from January 1, 2004. Upon expiratidris amended Technical Cooperation Agreement
will be terminated and will not be automaticallyesved; however, the patent cross license arrangemen
between TSMC and Philips (now NXP B.V.) will sureithe expiration of the amended Technical
Cooperation Agreement. Under this amended Tech@oaperation Agreement, TSMC will pay
Philips (now NXP B.V.) royalties based on a fixeataunt mutually agreed-on, rather than under a
certain percentage of the TSMC’s annual net sal@&MC and Philips (now NXP B.V.) agreed to
cross license the patents owned by each party. 0 8lgo obtained through Philips (now NXP B.V.)
a number of cross patent licenses

Under a technical cooperation agreement witl,|The R.O.C. Government or its designee approved
by TSMC can use up to 35% of TSMC'’s capacity if TSkloutstanding commitments to its customers
are not prejudiced. The term of this agreemefuri§ive years beginning from January 1, 1987 and i
automatically renewed for successive periods @& jigars unless otherwise terminated by either party
with one year prior notice.

Under several foundry agreements, TSMC shaélrie a portion of its production capacity for agrt
major customers that have guarantee deposits VBMJ. As of December 31, 2008, TSMC had a
total of US$43,421 thousand of guarantee deposits.

Under a Shareholders Agreement entered into Rhilips and EDB Investments Pte Ltd. on March 30,
1999, the parties formed a joint venture compar§M§S, which is an integrated circuit foundry in
Singapore. TSMC's equity interest in SSMC was 32%levertheless, Philips parted with its
semiconductor company which was renamed as NXP iB.8eptember 2006. TSMC and NXP B.V.
purchased all the SSMC shares owned by EDB InvedgtimBte Ltd. pro rata according to the
Shareholders Agreement on November 15, 2006. Aiipurchase, TSMC and NXP B.V. currently
own approximately 39% and 61% of the SSMC sharsgedively. TSMC and Philips (now NXP)
committed to buy specific percentages of the prodocapacity of SSMC. TSMC and Philips (now
NXP B.V.) are required, in the aggregate, to pusehap to 70% of SSMC's capacity, but TSMC alone
is not required to purchase more than 28% of tipaaty. If any party defaults on the commitment
and the capacity utilization of SSMC fall below @esific percentage of its capacity, the defaulting
party is required to compensate SSMC for all relateavoidable costs.

TSMC provides technical services to SSMC uadeechnical Cooperation Agreement (the Agreement)
effective March 30, 1999. TSMC receives compensator such services computed at a specific
percentage of net selling price of all productsldpt SSMC. The Agreement shall remain in force for
ten years and may be automatically renewed for emsiee periods of five years each unless
pre-terminated by either party under certain comals

TSMC provides a technology transfer to VIS undévianufacturing License and Technology Transfer
Agreement entered into on April 1, 2004. TSMC reee compensation for such technology transfer
in the form of royalty payments from VIS computedsaecific percentages of net selling price of
certain products sold by VIS. VIS agreed to resdts certain capacity to manufacture for TSMC
certain products at prices as agreed by the parties
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g. TSMC, TSMC North America and WaferTech filedazies of lawsuits in late 2003 and 2004 against
Semiconductor Manufacturing International Corpamati SMIC (Shanghai) and SMIC Americas
(aggregately referring to as “SMIC”). The lawsuétBeged that SMIC infringed multiple TSMC,
TSMC North America and WaferTech patents and misgpmated TSMC, TSMC North America and
WaferTech'’s trade secrets. These suits were dettleof court on January 30, 2005. As part of the
settlement, Semiconductor Manufacturing Internatid@orporation shall pay US$175 million over six
years to resolve TSMC, TSMC North America and Weéeh's claims. As of December 31, 2008,
SMIC had paid US$120 million in accordance with thens of this settlement agreement. In August
2006, TSMC, TSMC North America and WaferTech fiethwsuit against SMIC in Alameda County
Superior Court in California for breach of aforeriened settlement agreement, breach of promissory
notes and trade secret misappropriation, seekifgndtive relief and monetary damages. In
September 2006, SMIC filed a cross-complaint agai®MC, TSMC North America and WaferTech
in the same court, alleging TSMC, TSMC North Amarand WaferTech of breach of the settlement
agreement and implied covenant of good faith amddealing, in response to TSMC, TSMC North
America and WaferTech's August complaint. In Nokem2006, SMIC filed a complaint with
Beijing People's High Court against TSMC, TSMC Moiimerica and WaferTech alleging defamation
and breach of good faith. The California Stateesiap Court of Alameda County issued an Order on
TSMC, TSMC North America and WaferTech’s pre-tmabtion for a preliminary injunction against
SMIC on September 7, 2007. In the Order, the Cloumd “TSMC has demonstrated a significant
likelihood that it will ultimately prevail on the enits of its claim for breach of certain paragraphthe
(2005) Settlement Agreement” with SMIC. The Coafso found “TSMC has demonstrated a
significant probability of establishing that SMI@tains and is using TSMC Information in SMIC’s
0.13um and smaller technologies, and there isfgigni threat of serious irreparable harm to TSMC i
SMIC were to disclose or transfer that informathmfore final resolution of the case.” Therefores th
Court ordered that, effective immediately, SMIC mpsovide advance notice and an opportunity for
TSMC, TSMC North America and WaferTech to objecfobe disclosing items enumerated in the
Court Order to SMIC’s third party partners. Theu@p however, did not grant a preliminary
injunction as requested by TSMC, TSMC North Ameriad WaferTech. The result of the
above-mentioned litigation cannot be determindtiiattime.

h. In April 2004, UniRAM Technology, Inc. ("UniRAN filed an action against MoSys Inc., TSMC and
TSMC North America in the U.S. District Court fdret Northern District of California, alleging patent
infringement and trade secret misappropriation aeeking injunctive relief and damages. TSMC
appealed after the United States District CourttierNorthern District of California rendered judgmh
in favor of UniRAM in May 2008. In the third quartof 2008, TSMC and TSMC North America had
reached agreement with UniRAM to settle the disputim accordance with the settlement, the
judgment has been vacated and the claims assertehiRAM are fully and finally settled. As of
December 31, 2008, TSMC had accounted for the trefulhe settlement in accordance with the
aforementioned settlement agreement.

i. The Company entered into an agreement with wnteoparty in 2003 whereby TSMC Shanghai is
obligated to purchase certain property, plant andmnent at the agreed-upon price within the cantra
period. If the purchase is not completed, TSMCnghai is obligated to compensate the counterparty
for the loss incurred. The property, plant andigment have been in use by TSMC Shanghai since
2004 and are being depreciated over their estimaggdice lives. The related obligation totaled
NT$8,579,726 thousand and NT$7,908,516 thousamd Becember 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively,
which is included in other long-term payables aa @ompany’s consolidated balance sheets.
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29. ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES

Following are the additional disclosures requitgdthe SFB for TSMC and its investees in which all
significant intercompany balances and transactiwesliminated upon consolidation:

a. Financing provided: None;
b. Endorsement/guarantee provided: None;
c. Marketable securities held: Please see Taht&athed;

d. Marketable securities acquired and disposedt absts or prices of at least NT$100 million o#®6f
the paid-in capital: Please see Table 2 attached,;

e. Acquisition of individual real estate propestat costs of at least NT$100 million or 20% of plaéd-in
capital: Please see Table 3 attached;

f. Disposal of individual real estate propertiépaces of at least NT$100 million or 20% of thaigsin
capital: None;

g. Total purchases from or sales to related magmounting to at least NT$100 million or 20% oé th
paid-in capital: Please see Table 4 attached;

h. Receivable from related parties amounting teeast NT$100 million or 20% of the paid-in capital
Please see Table 5 attached;

i. Names, locations, and related information ektees over which TSMC exercises significant erilue:
Please see Table 6 attached;

j. Information on investment in Mainland China
1) The name of the investee in mainland China,ntfain businesses and products, its issued capital,
method of investment, information on inflow or datf of capital, percentage of ownership, equity

in the net gain or net loss, ending balance, ammadived as dividends from the investee, and the
limitation on investee: Please see Table 7 atthche

2) Significant direct or indirect transactionsttwithe investee, its prices and terms of payment,
unrealized gain or loss, and other related infolwnatvhich is helpful to understand the impact of
investment in mainland China on financial report®lease see Table 8 attached.

k. Intercompany relationships and significantiotenpany transactions: Please see Table 8 attached

30. SEGMENT FINANCIAL INFORMATION
a. Industry financial information

The Company operates in one industry. Theretbeedisclosure of industry financial informatian i
not applicable to the Company.
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b. Geographic information:

North America Adjustments
and Others Taiwan and Elimination Consolidated

2008
Sales to other than consolidat

entities $ 193,727,539% 139,430,121 $ - $ 333,157,660
Sales among consolidated

entities 16,280,818 194,731,514 _ (211,012,332 -
Total sales $ 210,008,358 334,161,635 $ (211,012,332 $ 333,157,660
Gross profit $ 2,114,127% 140,540,236 $ (904,809 $ 141,749,561
Operating expenses (37,314,193)
Non-operating income and

gains 10,821,449
Non-operating expenses and

losses (3,784,571
Income before income tax $ 111,472,246
Identifiable assets $ 122,781,558 425,545,212 $ (29,391,693 $ 518,935,074
Long-term investments 39,981,515
Total assets $ 558,916,589
2007
Sales to other than consolidat

entities $ 193,066,238% 129,564,358 $ - $ 322,630,596
Sales among consolidated

entities 18,084,068_ 194,035,526 _ (212,119,594 -
Total sales $ 211,150,3066 323,599,884 $ (212,119,594 $ 322,630,596
Gross profit $ 3,895,144% 139,227,508 $ (772,443 $ 142,350,211
Operating expenses (30,628,304 )
Non-operating income and

gains 11,933,803
Non-operating expenses and

losses (2,013,634
Income before income tax $ 121,642,026
Identifiable assets $ 145,483,41% 439,675,938 $ (50,755,448 $ 534,403,901
Long-term investments 36,461,325
Total assets $ 570,865,226
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C.

Export sales

Years Ended December 31

Area 2008 2007
Asia $ 55,383,901 $ 40,609,413
Europe and others 41,890,123 34,518,668
$ 97,274,024 $ 75,128,081

The export sales information is based on the awscuilled to customers within the areas.

Major customers representing at least 10% adgysales

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007
Amount % Amount %
Customer A $ 46523059 14 $ 37,731,028 11
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Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

MARKETABLE SECURITIES HELD

DECEMBER 31, 2008

(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, UnlesSpecified Otherwise)

TABLE 1

December 31, 2008
H - . - . . X . Market Value or Net
eld Company Name Marketable Securities Type and Nae Relationship with the Company Financial StatemerAccount 'Shares/Unlts Carl"ylng Value Percentgge of Asset Value Note
(in Thousands) (US$ in Thousands)|  Ownership (%) (US$ in Thousands)
TSMC Corporate bond
Taiwan Mobile Co., Ltd - Available-for-sale financial asse - $ 2,032,65 N/A $ 2,032,65
Taiwan Power Compai - Held-to-maturity financial asse - 4,209,62' N/A 4,215,26!
Formosa Petrochemical Corporation - ” - 3,554,908 N/A 3,540,418
Nan Ya Plastics Corporation - ” - 3,487,804 N/A 3,512,202
Formosa Plastic Corporation - ” - 2,385,285 N/A 2,391,955
CPC Corporation, Taiwan - ” - 1,000,124 N/A 999,740
China Steel Corporation - ” - 1,000,000 N/A 990,897
Shanghai Commercial & Saving Bank - ” - 299,092 N/A 298,988
Formosa Chemicals & Fiber Corporation - ” - 199,910 N/A 199,890
Government bond
2003 Asian Development Bank Govt. Bond - Held-tatunity financial assets - 873,237 N/A ATs
European Investment Bank Bonds - ” - 383,387 N/A 400,000
2004 Government Bond Series B - " - 249,948 N/A 250,280
Stocks
TSMC Global Subsidiary Investments accounted for using 1 45,756,519 100 45,756,519
equity metho
TSMC International Subsidiary ” 987,968 29,637,057 100 29,637,057
VIS Investee accounted for using equity ” 628,223 9,787,275 37 4,680,265
methoc
SSMC Investee accounted for using equity ” 314 6,808,192 39 6,036,045
method
TSMC Partners Subsidiary ” 300 3,730,913 100 3,730,913
TSMC North America Subsidiary ” 11,000 2,435,666 100 2,435,666
XinTec Investee with a controlling financial ” 92,620 1,506,384 42 1,443,752
interest
GuC Investee with a controlling financial ” 44,904 950,263 36 5,208,842
interest
TSMC Japan Subsidiary ” 6 137,617 100 137,617
TSMC Europe Subsidiary ” - 124,594 100 124,594
TSMC Korea Subsidiary ” 80 15,117 100 15,117
United Industrial Gases Co., Ltd. - Financial assets carried at cost 16,783 588 10 292,902
Shin-Etsu Handotai Taiwan Co., Ltd. - " 10,500 105,000 7 384,157
W.K. Technology Fund IV - ” 4,000 40,000 2 38,479
Hontung Venture Capital Co., Ltd. - ” 2,633 18,925 10 18,816
Fund
Horizon Ventures Fur - Financial assets rried at cos - 103,99 12 103,99:
Crimson Asia Capital - ” - 58,001 1 58,001
Capital
TSMC Shanghai Subsidiary Investments accounted for using - 6,267,128 100 6,269,794
equity method
VTAF Il Subsidiary ” - 1,305,605 98 1,291,057
VTAF Il Subsidiary " - 975,367 98 970,912
Emerging Alliance Subsidiary ” - 433,481 99 433,481
(Continued)
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December 31, 2008
- . - . . . . Market Value or Net
Held Company Name Marketable Securities Type and Nae Relationship with the Company Financial StatememAccount Shares/Units Carrying Value Percentage of Asset Value Note
; . 20
(in Thousands) | (US$in Thousands)] Ownership (%) (US$ in Thousands)
TSMC North America Preferred stock
NeXen, Inc. - Financial assets carried at cost 328 uss$ 656 1 us$ 1,912
TSMC International Corporate bond
General Elec Cap Corp. Mtn - Held-to-maturity financial assets - uUss 2a,79 N/A US$ 20,671
General Elec Cap Corp. Mtn - ” - US$ 20,294 N/A USs$ 20,050
Stocks
TSMC Development, Inc. (TSMC Development) Subsidia Investments accounted for using 1 US$ 690,095 100 US$ 690,095
equity method
InveStar Semiconductor Development Fund, Inc.L@C. |Subsidiary ” 32,289 US$ 25,586 97 US$ 25,586
(ISDF 11)
TSMC Technology Subsidiary ” 1 US$ 8,408 100 USs$ 8,408
InveStar Semiconductor Development Fund, Inc. BBD | Subsidiary ” 7,680 Us$ 6,529 97 Us$ 6,529
TSMC Development Corporate bond
GE Capital Corp. - Held-to-maturity financial assets - uUss 2044 N/A US$ 20,050
Stocks
WaferTech Subsidiary Investments accounted for using 293,637 US$ 204,558 100 US$ 204,558
equity method
TSMC Partners Common stock
VisEra Holding Company Investee accounted for gisiquity Investments accounted for using 43,000 US$ 69,298 49 US$ 69,298
method equity method
TSMC Canada Subsidiary ” 2,300 uUss$ 2,570 100 uUss$ 2,570
Emerging Alliance Common stock
Pixim, Inc - Financial assets carried at ¢ 202 uss 54 - (UK 54
RichWave Technology Corp. - ” 4,247 us$ 1,648 10 uss 1,648
Global Investment Holding Inc. - ” 10,800 Us$ 3,065 6 Us$ 3,065
Preferred stock
Audience, Inc. - Financial assets carried at cost 1,654 Us$ 0 25 1 uss$ 250
Axiom Microdevices, Inc. - " 1,000 Us$ 1,000 1 Us$ 1,000
GemFire Corporation - ” - uss$ 31 - uss$ 31
Miradia, Inc. - ” 3,040 Us$ 1,000 2 Us$ 1,000
Mosaic Systems, Inc. - ” 2,481 us$ 12 6 uss 12
Next 10, Inc. - " 800 Us$ 500 1 Us$ 500
Optichron, Inc. - ” 714 uUs$ 1,000 2 Us$ 1,000
Optimal Corporation - " - uss$ 229 - Us$ 229
Pixim, Inc. - " 4,439 Uss 1,083 2 Us$ 1,083
QST Holding, LLC - ” - Uss$ 131 4 us$ 131
Teknovus, Inc. - " 6,977 uss 1,327 2 us$ 1,327
Capita
VentureTech Alliance Holdings, L.L.C. (VTA Holdisy Subsidiary Investments accounted for using - - 8 -
equity method
VTAF Il Common stoc
Sentelic - Financial assets carried at cost 1,200 US$ 04, 15 USs$ 2,040
Aquantia - ” 2,108 Us$ 2,573 5 Uss 2,573
Leadtrend - ” 1,265 Uss$ 660 5 uss$ 660
Preferred stock
5V Technologies, Inc. - Financial assets carried at cost 2,890 US$ 162, 15 Us$ 2,168
Audience, Inc. - " 5,335 uUss 1,390 2 Us$ 1,390
Axiom Microdevices, Inc. - " 5,046 Us$ 2481 5 US$ 2,481
(Continued)
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December 31, 2008
- . - . . . . Market Value or Net
Held Company Name Marketable Securities Type and Nae Relationship with the Company Financial StatememAccount 'Shares/Unlts Car(ymg Value Percentage of Asset Value Note
(in Thousands) (US$ in Thousands)|  Ownership (%) (US$ in Thousands)
Beceem Communications - Financial assets carried at cost 650 Us$  QL,60 1 uss$ 1,600
GemFire Corporation - ” 600 uss$ 68 1 us$ 68
Impinj, Inc. - ” 475 USs$ 1,000 - UsS$ 1,000
Miradia, Inc. - " 3,416 Us$ 3,106 3 Us$ 3,106
Next 10, Inc. - ” 2,775 uss$ 756 2 uss$ 756
Optichron, Inc. - " 1,050 Us$ 1,844 4 Us$ 1,844
Pixim, Inc. - ” 6,348 uss$ 1,141 2 uss$ 1,141
Power Analog Microelectronics - ” 5,232 uUss 2,790 18 Uss 2,790
QST Holding, LLC - ” - uss$ 415 13 uss$ 415
RichWave Technology Corp. - ” 1,043 us$ 730 1 uss$ 730
Teknovus, Inc. - " 1,599 us$ 454 - uss 454
Tzero Technologies, Inc. - ” 1,167 us$ 569 2 uss$ 569
Xceive - ” 870 uss 1,177 2 us$s 1,177
Capital
VTA Holdings Subsidiary Investments accounted for using - - 24 -
equity method
VTAF Il ICommon stock
Mutual-pak Technology Co., Ltd. Subsidiary Invesiits accounted for using 4,590 Us$ 1,705 51 Us$ 1,705
equity method
Acionn Technology Corporation Investee accountedi§ing equity ” 4,500 Us$ 1,052 44 Us$ 1,052
method
Auramicro, Inc - Financial assets card at cos 3,81¢ US$ 1,14 2C uss 1,14t
InvenSence, Inc. - " 816 Us$ 1,000 1 Us$ 1,000
Preferred stock
Advasense Sensors, Inc. - Financial assets carried at cost 1,929 US$ 8341, 6 uss 1,834
BridgeLux, Inc. - " 3,333 Us$ 5,000 3 Us$ 5,000
Exclara, Inc. (Formerly SynDitec, Inc.) - ” 21,708 US$ 4,568 18 US$ 4,568
GTBF, Inc. - " 1,154 uUs$ 1,500 N/A Us$ 1,500
LiquidLeds Lighting Corp. - ” 1,600 us$ 800 11 uss 800
M2000, Inc. - ” 3,000 Us$ 3,000 5 Us$ 3,000
Neoconix, Inc. - " 2,458 US$ 4,000 6 US$ 4,000
Powervation, Ltd. - " 191 Us$ 2,930 19 uUs$ 2,930
Quellan, Inc. - ” 3,106 Us$ 3,500 6 Us$ 3,500
Silicon Technical Services, LLC - " 1,055 Us$ 1,208 2 Us$ 1,208
Tilera, Inc. - ” 1,698 Us$ 2,360 3 Us$ 2,360
Validity Sensors, Inc. - ” 6,424 US$ 2,545 3 US$ 2,545
Capita
Growth Fund Limited (Growth Fund) Subsidiary Intresnts accounted for using - uss$ 100 100 us$ 100
equity method
VTA Holdings Subsidiary ” - - 68 -
Growth Fund _Common stock
Staccat - Financial assets carried at ¢ 10 uss 2E - uss 25
ISDF Common stock
Capella Microsystems (Taiwan), |. - Financial assets carried at ¢ 53C uss 154 2 uss 154
Preferred stock
Memsic, Inc. - Available-for-sale financial assets 1,364 US$2,250 6 uUss$ 2,250
Integrated Memory Logic, Inc. - Financial assets carried at cost 2,872 US$ 2211, 9 Uss$ 1,221
IP Unity, Inc. - ” 1,008 us$ 290 1 uss$ 290
NanoAmp Solutions, Inc. - ” 541 Us$ 541 2 Us$ 541
Sonics, Inc. - " 230 Us$ 1,843 2 Us$ 1,843
(Continued)
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December 31, 2008
- . - . . . . Market Value or Net
Held Company Name Marketable Securities Type and Nae Relationship with the Company Financial StatememAccount 'Shares/Unlts Car(ymg Value Percentage of Asset Value Note
(in Thousands) (US$ in Thousands)|  Ownership (%) (US$ in Thousands)
ISDF Il Common stock
Rich Tek Technology Corp. - Financial assets at fair value through 101 uss$ 403 - us$ 403
profit or loss
Rich Tek Technology Corp. - Available-for-sale financial assets 288 US$ ,148 - uss 1,148
Ralink Technology (Taiwan), Inc. - ” 1,512 Us$ 3,232 1 USs$ 3,232
eLCOS Microdisplay Technology, Ltd. - Financial assets carried at cost 270 uss 2 1 uss 27
EoNEX Technologies, Inc. - " 55 uss$ 305 5 Uss$ 305
Sonics, Inc. - ” 278 uUs$ 1,597 3 uUs$ 1,597
Epic Communication, Inc. - ” 191 Us$ 23 1 Uss$ 23
EON Technology, Corp. - ” 2,494 Us$ 691 3 Us$ 691
Goyatek Technology, Corp. - ” 2,088 Us$ 545 12 Us$ 545
Trendchip Technologies Corp. - ” 1,020 Us$ 574 3 Us$ 574
Capella Microsystems (Taiwan), Inc. - ” 534 uss$ 210 2 uss 210
Auden Technology MFG. Co., Ltd. - ” 1,049 Us$ 223 3 Us$ 223
Preferred stock
Memsic, Inc - Available-for-sale financial asse 1,14¢ Uss  1,88¢ 5 uUs§  1,88¢
Alchip Technologies Limited - Financial assets carried at cost 6,979 US$ 668, 19 US$ 3,664
eL.COS Microdisplay Technology, Ltd. - ” 3,500 us$ 878 8 uss$ 878
FangTek, Inc. - n 7,064 US$ 3,428 16 US$ 3,428
Kilopass Technology, Inc. - ” 3,887 us$ 1,746 5 us$ 1,746
NanoAmp Solutions, Inc. - " 375 uss$ 375 1 Us$ 375
Sonics, Inc. - ” 264 us$ 1,517 3 uUs$ 1,517
Guc Common stoc
GUC-NA Subsidiary Investments accounted for using 800 $ 34,019 100 $ 34,019
equity method
GUC-Japan Subsidiary ” 1 11,854 100 11,854
GUC-Europe Subsidiary ” - 2,563 100 2,563
XinTec Capital
Compositech Ltd. - Financial assets carried at cost 587 3 -
TSMC Global _Agency bonds
Fed Hm Ln Pc Pool 101225 - Available-for-sale financial assets - Us$ 75 N/A uss$ 75
Fed Hm Ln Pc Pool 1b2566 - n - uss$ 118 N/A uss 118
Fed Hm Ln Pc Pool 102632 - n - uss$ 145 N/A uss$ 145
Fed Hm Ln Pc Pool 1b2642 - n - uss$ 195 N/A uss 195
Fed Hm Ln Pc Pool 102776 - " - uss$ 282 N/A uss$ 282
Fed Hm Ln Pc Pool 1b2792 - " - uss$ 193 N/A uss 193
Fed Hm Ln Pc Pool 102810 - " - uss$ 246 N/A uss$ 246
Fed Hm Ln Pc Pool 1b7453 - ” - uss 2,302 N/A uss 2,302
Fed Hm Ln Pc Pool 1g0038 - ” - Us$ 243 N/A Us$ 243
Fed Hm Ln Pc Pool 1g0053 - ” - uss$ 289 N/A uss 289
Fed Hm Ln Pc Pool 1g0104 - " - uss$ 119 N/A uss 119
Fed Hm Ln Pc Pool 191282 - n - uUss$ 3,285 N/A uUs$ 3,285
Fed Hm Ln Pc Pool 191411 - " - uss 2,979 N/A uss 2,979
Fed Hm Ln Pc Pool 1h2520 - n - uUs$ 2,152 N/A uUs$ 2,152
Fed Hm Ln Pc Pool 1h2524 - ” - uss$ 1,614 N/A uss$ 1,614
Fed Hm Ln Pc Pool 780870 - n - uss$ 481 N/A uss$ 481
Fed Hm Ln Pc Pool 781959 - " - uUss 2841 N/A uUss 2841
Fed Hm Ln Pc Pool 782785 - " - uss$ 198 N/A uss$ 198
Fed Hm Ln Pc Pool 782837 - " - uss$ 390 N/A uss 390
Fed Hm Ln Pc Pool 783022 - " - uss$ 443 N/A uss$ 443
(Continued)
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December 31, 2008
- . - . . . . Market Value or Net
Held Company Name Marketable Securities Type and Nae Relationship with the Company Financial StatememAccount 'Shares/Unlts Car(ymg Value Percentage of Asset Value Note
(in Thousands) (US$ in Thousands)|  Ownership (%) (US$ in Thousands)

Fed Hm Ln Pc Pool 783026 - Available-for-sale financial assets - uss$ 239 N/A uss$ 239

Fed Hm Ln Pc Pool B19205 - ” - Us$ 5,501 N/A Us$ 5,501
Fed Hm Ln Pc Pool E01492 - ” - uss$ 1,544 N/A uss$ 1,544
Fed Hm Ln Pc Pool E89857 - ” - uss 1,152 N/A uss 1,152
Fed Hm Ln Pc Pool G11295 - " - uss$ 911 N/A uss$ 911
Fed Hm Ln Pc Pool M80855 - ” - Us$ 2,526 N/A Us$ 2,526
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp. - " - uss$ 348 N/A Us$ 348
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp. - " - uss$ 187 N/A Us$ 187
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp. - " - uUs$ 3,108 N/A US$ 3,108
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp. - ” - uss$ 1,603 N/A uss 1,603
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp. - ” - uss$ 1,727 N/A uss 1,727
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp. - ” - uss$ 1,185 N/A uss 1,185
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp. - ” - uss$ 2,782 N/A uss 2,782
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp. - ” - uss 1,383 N/A uss 1,383
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp. - ” - uss 2,358 N/A uUs$ 2,358
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp. - " - uUs$ 2,233 N/A Us$ 2,233
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp. - ” - uss 2,880 N/A uUs$ 2,880
Federal National Mort Assoc - " - uss$ 2,049 N/A Us$ 2,049
Federal National Mortgage Asso - ” - uss 2,879 N/A uss 2,879
Federal Natl Mtg Assn - " - uUs$ 1,328 N/A Uss 1,328
Federal Natl Mtg Assn - ” - uss 1,315 N/A uss 1,315
Federal Natl Mtg Assn - " - uUss 1,372 N/A uUss 1,372
Federal Natl Mtg Assn - ” - uss 2,868 N/A uUss 2,868
Federal Natl Mtg Assn Gtd - " - Us$ 1,298 N/A UsS$ 1,298
Fnma Pool 255883 - n - uss 2,724 N/A uUss 2,724
Fnma Pool 257245 - " - uUs$ 3513 N/A uUs$ 3,513
Fnma Pool 555549 - n - uUss 1,184 N/A uUss 1,184
Fnma Pool 555715 - ” - Uss$ 142 N/A uss$ 142
Fnma Pool 632399 - " - Us$ 337 N/A Us$ 337
Fnma Pool 662401 - ” - uss$ 451 N/A uss$ 451
Fnma Pool 667766 - " - Us$ 1,068 N/A US$ 1,068
Fnma Pool 680932 - " - uss 952 N/A uss 952
Fnma Pool 681393 - " - Us$ 2,045 N/A Us$ 2,045
Fnma Pool 685116 - " - uss$ 489 N/A uss 489
Fnma Pool 691283 - ” - uUs$ 3,039 N/A UsS$ 3,039
Fnma Pool 694287 - n - uss$ 17 N/A uss 17
Fnma Pool 703711 - n - uss$ 402 N/A uss$ 402
Fnma Pool 725095 - ” - uss$ 865 N/A uss 865
Fnma Pool 730033 - n - uss$ 138 N/A uss$ 138
Fnma Pool 740934 - ” - uss$ 889 N/A uss 889
Fnma Pool 742232 - " - uss$ 13 N/A uss$ 13
Fnma Pool 750798 - n - uss$ 18 N/A uss$ 18
Fnma Pool 773246 - " - uss$ 183 N/A uss$ 183
Fnma Pool 793932 - n - uss$ 367 N/A uss$ 367
Fnma Pool 794040 - " - uss$ 579 N/A uss 579
Fnma Pool 795548 - n - uss$ 133 N/A uss 133
Fnma Pool 799664 - " - uss$ 77 N/A uss 77
Fnma Pool 799868 - ” - uss$ 26 N/A uss 26
Fnma Pool 804764 - " - uss$ 303 N/A uss 303
Fnma Pool 804852 - n - uss$ 264 N/A uss$ 264
Fnma Pool 804962 - ” - uss$ 323 N/A uss 323
Fnma Pool 805163 - n - Uss$ 347 N/A uss$ 347
Fnma Pool 806642 - " - uss$ 457 N/A uss 457

(Continued)
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December 31, 2008
- . - . . . . Market Value or Net
Held Company Name Marketable Securities Type and Nae Relationship with the Company Financial StatememAccount 'Shares/Unlts Car(ymg Value Percentage of Asset Value Note
(in Thousands) (US$ in Thousands)|  Ownership (%) (US$ in Thousands)

Fnma Pool 806721 - Available-for-sale financial assets - Us$ 548 N/A uss$ 548
Fnma Pool 814418 - ” - uss$ 297 N/A uss 297
Fnma Pool 815626 - " - Us$ 1,833 N/A UsS$ 1,833
Fnma Pool 819423 - ” - uss$ 453 N/A uss 453
Fnma Pool 821129 - " - uss$ 430 N/A uss$ 430
Fnma Pool 888499 - ” - Us$ 1,588 N/A Us$ 1,588
Fnma Pool 888502 - " - uss$ 204 N/A uss$ 204
Fnma Pool 888507 - n - uss$ 783 N/A uss$ 783
Fnma Pool 888515 - " - uss$ 847 N/A uss$ 847
Fnma Pool 888519 - ” - uss$ 99 N/A uss 99
Fnma Pool 888527 - " - uss$ 57 N/A uss 57
Fnma Pool 888738 - ” - uUss 3,776 N/A uUs$ 3,776
Fnma Pool 888793 - " - UsS$ 4,242 N/A Us$ 4,242
Fnma Pool 900296 - ” - uUss 2415 N/A uss 2415
Gnma li Pool 081150 - ” - uss 331 N/A uss 331
Gnma li Pool 081153 - " - uUs$ 1,030 N/A US$ 1,030
Gnma Pool 646061 - ” - Us$ 2,468 N/A uUs$ 2,468
Government Natl Mtg Assn Gtd - " - Us$ 1,861 N/A Uss 1,861
Fed Home Ln Bank - ” - Us$ 5,305 N/A uUs$ 5,305
Federal Farm Cr Bks - ” - Us$ 3,610 N/A uUs$ 3,610
Federal Farm Credit Bank - ” - Us$ 3433 N/A Us$ 3433
Federal Home Ln Bks - ” - Us$ 3,854 N/A Us$ 3,854
Federal Home Ln Bks - " - Us$ 5,320 N/A Us$ 5,320
Federal Home Ln Bks - ” - US$ 4,148 N/A Us$ 4,148
Federal Home Ln Mtg - ” - uss 5,340 N/A Us$ 5,340
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp. - ” - Us$ 3428 N/A uUs$ 3428
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp. - ” - Us$ 3,560 N/A Us$ 3,560
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp. - " - uUs$ 3,743 N/A US$ 3,743
Federal Home Loan Bank - " - uUs$ 4,710 N/A uUs$ 4,710
Federal Natl Mtg Assn - " - Us$ 4,134 N/A US$ 4,134
Federal Natl Mtg Assn - " - uss 3,713 N/A Us$ 3,713
Federal Natl Mtg Assn - ” - Us$ 4,169 N/A Us$ 4,169
Federal Natl Mtg Assn - " - uUs$ 3,809 N/A US$ 3,809
Federal Natl Mtg Assn Mtn - ” - uUs$ 3,108 N/A uUs$ 3,108
Corporate issued asset-backed securities

Banc Amer Coml Mtg Inc. - Available-for-sale financial assets - US$ 8u5 N/A US$ 4,584
Banc Amer Fdg 2006 | Tr - ” - Us$ 2,066 N/A Us$ 2,066
Bear Stearns Adjustable Rate - " - uss$ 60 N/A Us$ 60
Bear Stearns Arm Tr - " - uUs$ 1,909 N/A uUs$ 1,909
Bear Stearns Arm Tr - ” - Us$ 1,160 N/A uss$ 1,160
Bear Stearns Arm Tr - " - uss$ 129 N/A uss$ 129
Bear Stearns Coml Mtg Secs Inc. - " - uss$ 96 N/A Us$ 96
Bear Stearns Coml Mtg Secs Inc. - ” - uss$ 2,690 N/A uUs$ 2,690
Cbass Tr - " - uss$ 709 N/A uss 709
Chase Mtg Fin Tr - n - uss$ 576 N/A uss 576
Chase Mtg Fin Tr - " - uss 1171 N/A uss 1171
Chase Mtg Fin Tr - ” - uUss 1,704 N/A uUss 1,704
Chase Mtge Finance Corp. - ” - uss$ 865 N/A uss 865
Cit Equip Coll Tr - " - Us$ 3,884 N/A US$ 3,884
Credit Suisse First Boston Mtg - ” - uss$ 439 N/A uss 439
Credit Suisse First Boston Mtg - " - uUs$ 1513 N/A Us$ 1513
Credit Suisse First Boston Mtg - ” - US$ 4,349 N/A US$ 4,349
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- . - . . . . Market Value or Net
Held Company Name Marketable Securities Type and Nae Relationship with the Company Financial StatememAccount 'Shares/Unlts Car(ymg Value Percentage of Asset Value Note
(in Thousands) (US$ in Thousands)|  Ownership (%) (US$ in Thousands)
First Franklin Mtg Ln Tr - Available-for-sale financial assets - Us$ 413] N/A Us$ 413
First Horizon - " - uss$ 29 N/A uss 29
First Un Natl Bk Coml Mtg Tr - n - Us$ 1,051 N/A Us$ 1,051
First Un Natl Bk Coml Mtg Tr - ” - uUss 4,715 N/A uUss 4,715
First Un Natl Bk Coml Mtg Tr - ” - Uss 2,019 N/A Uss 2,019
Gs Mtg Secs Corp. - ” - uss$ 991 N/A uss 991
Home Equity Mortgage Trust - " - uUs$ 1,237 N/A uUss 1,237
Home Equity Mtg Tr 2006 4 - n - Us$ 485 N/A Us$ 485
JP Morgan Mtg Tr - ” - Us$ 588 N/A Us$ 588
JP Morgan Mtg Tr - ” - uss$ 630 N/A uss 630
JP Morgan Mtg Tr - ” - uss$ 559 N/A uss 559
Lb Ubs Coml Mtg Tr - ” - Us$ 3,495 N/A Us$ 3,495
Nomura Asset Accep Corp. - ” - uss$ 660 N/A uss 660
Residential Asset Mtg Prods - ” - uss 1,515 N/A uss 1,515
Residential Fdg Mtg Secs | Inc. - ” - uss 1,074 N/A uss 1,074
Residential Fdg Mtg Secs | Inc. - " - uUs$ 2,331 N/A Uss 2,331
Sequoia Mtg Tr - ” - uss 288 N/A uss 288
Sequoia Mtg Tr - n - Us$ 158 N/A Uss$ 158
Sequoia Mtg Tr - ” - uss 147 N/A uss 147
Terwin Mtg Tr - ” - Uss 1,041 N/A Us$ 1,041
Tiaa Seasoned Coml Mtg Tr - ” - uUs$ 3,163 N/A uUs$ 3,163
Wamu Mtg - ” - Uss 2,925 N/A Us$ 2,925
Wamu Mtg Pass Through Ctfs - ” - uss 114 N/A uss 114
Wamu Mtg Pass Through Ctfs - " - Us$ 1521 N/A Uss 1521
Washington Mut Mtg Secs Corp. - ” - uss 1,641 N/A uss 1,641
Wells Fargo Mtg Backed Secs - ” - uss 2,405 N/A uUs$ 2,405
Wells Fargo Mtg Backed Secs - ” - uss 2,632 N/A uUss 2,632
Wells Fargo Mtg Backed Secs - " - uUs$ 2,391 N/A Uss 2,391
Wells Fargo Mtg Bkd Secs - " - Uss$ 845 N/A Us$ 845
Wells Fargo Mtg Bkd Secs - " - uUs$ 2,088 N/A US$ 2,088
Corporate bonds
American Gen Fin Corp. Mtn - Available-for-sale financial assets - US$ 5B1 N/A Us$ 1,156
Chase Manhattan Corp. New - ” - uss$ 1,505 N/A uss 1,505
Chase Manhattan Corp. New - " - Us$ 2,066 N/A US$ 2,066
Chase Manhattan Corp. New - ” - uUs$ 3,353 N/A Us$ 3,353
Credit Suisse First Boston USA - " - uss$ 347 N/A uss$ 347
Deutsche Bank Ag London - ” - uUss$ 3,013 N/A uUs$ 3,013
Fleet Boston Corp. - " - uUs$ 2,589 N/A US$ 2,589
General Elec Cap Corp. Mtn - ” - uss$ 2,988 N/A uUs$ 2,988
General Elec Cap Corp. Mtn - " - uss$ 673 N/A Us$ 673
Goldman Sachs Group - " - uUs$ 2,029 N/A Uss 2,029
JP Morgan Chase - " - Us$ 1,994 N/A US$ 1,994
Mellon Fdg Corp. - ” - uss$ 2,669 N/A uUs$ 2,669
Morgan Stanley - ” - US$ 4,552 N/A US$ 4,552
U S Bancorp Mtn Bk Ent - ” - uss$ 1,369 N/A uss 1,369
Wachovia Corp. New - ” - uUss$ 3,135 N/A uUs$ 3,135
Wells Fargo + Co. New Med Trm - ” - US$ 4,493 N/A US$ 4,493
Money market func
Ssga Cash Mgmt Global Offshore - Available-for-sale financial assets - Us$ 435 N/A US$ 30,435
Government bonds
United States Treas Nts - Available-for-sale financial assets - US$ 3m, N/A US$ 10,374
(Concluded)
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Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

MARKETABLE SECURITIES ACQUIRED AND DISPOSED OF AT C OSTS OR PRICES OF AT LEAST NT$100 MILLION OR 20% OF THE PAID-IN CAPITAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unles®therwise Specified)

TABLE 2

Financial Beginning Balance Acquisition Disposal (Note 2) Eridg Balance (Note 3)
Marketable Securities Type and g Nature of . Amount Shares/Units Amount . Amount Carrying Value | Gain (Loss) or .
Company Namg Name S;iforﬂﬁ?t Counter-party Relationship (iﬁr}?gjlsgzgss) (Us$in (in Thousands) (Us$in (lﬁr%.ahrgzlsgﬂhi) (Uss$in (Us$in Disposal (US$ (lﬁr%.eggzlsgzzz) Q?ﬂg:;gg;
Thousands) (Note 1) Thousands) Thousands) Thousands) | in Thousands)
TSMC Open-end mutual funds
NITC Bond Fund Available-for-saleNational Investment Trust Co|, - 12,239 | $ 2,045,935 6,257 | $ 1,058,000 18,496 3,119,140 | $ 3,047,038 | $ 72,102 -1 % -
financial asse Ltd.
Fuh Hwa Bond Fund ” Fuh Hwa Investment Trust Co., - 132,997 1,801,674 129,864 1,775,000 262,861 3,598,480 3,543,862 54,618 - -
Ltd.
NITC Taiwan Bond Fund " National Investment Trust Col, - 103,016 1,474,856 153,113 2,214,000 256,129 3,703,023 3,656,443 46,580 - -
Ltd.
ING Taiwan Bond Fund " ING Securities Investment - 85,581 1,310,030 140,522 2,170,000 226,103 3,497,877 3,470,000 27,877 - -
Trust Co., Ltd
Prudential Financial Bond Fund ” Prudential Financial Securitiep - 83,306 1,236,728 - - 83,306 1,245,214 1,204,418 40,796 - -
Investment Trust Enterpriseg
Uni-President James Bond Fund " Uni-President Assets - 77,128 1,208,799 120,183 1,900,000 197,311 3,125,566 3,100,000 25,566 - -
Management Corp.
JF Taiwan Bond Fund ” JF Asset Management (Taiwg - 59,049 915,252 45,425 712,000 104,474 1,635,181 1,612,083 23,098 - -
Ltd.
ING Taiwan Income Bond Fund " ING Securities Investment - 54,621 878,682 60,839 988,000 115,460 1,877,230 1,842,149 35,081 - -
Trust Co., Ltd.
Taishin Lucky Investment Trust ” Taishin Investment Trust Co.,| - 68,945 718,556 - - 68,945 724,340 701,524 22,816 - -
Func Ltd.
AIG Taiwan Bond Fund ” AIG Global Asset Management - 54,469 705,033 - - 54,469 708,863 700,000 8,863 - -
Corporation (Taiwan) Ltd.
Cathay Bond Fund ” Cathay Securities Investment - 60,126 703,824 - - 60,126 709,289 700,000 9,289 - -
Trust Co., Ltd
Dresdner Bond DAM Fund ” Allianz Global Investors - 54,319 639,542 - - 54,319 644,310 624,828 19,482 - -
Taiwan Ltd.
JF Taiwan First Bond Fund ” JF Asset Management (Taiwg - 35,324 504,206 - - 35,324 508,184 500,342 7,842 - -
Ltd.
HSBC NTD Money Management " HSBC Asset Management - 27,416 413,504 - - 27,416 416,788 402,614 14,174 - -
Fund (Taiwan) Ltd.
INVESCO Bond Fund " INVESCO Taiwan Limited - 27,176 410,054 - - 27,176 412,892 403,727 9,165 - -
IBT Ta-Chong Bond Fund ” IBT Asset Magement Co., Ltd. - - - 74,771 1,000,000 74,771 1,002,474 1,000,000 2,474 - -
PCA Well Pool Fund " PCA Securities Investment - - - 187,050 2,400,000 187,050 2,411,016 2,400,000 11,016 - -
Trust Co., Ltd.
Capital Income Fund ” Capital Investment Trust - - - 228,072 3,480,000 228,072 3,491,264 3,480,000 11,264 - -
Corporation
Government bor
2004 Government Bond Series [Bwvailable-for-sale |Grand Cathay Securities Corp. - - 1,197,121 - - - 1,203,434 1,201,660 1,774 - -
financial assets| and several financial
institutions
2004 Government Bond Series |G ” ” - - 200,065 - - - 201,301 200,841 460 - -
2004 Government Bond Series [Bleld-to-maturity |Sinopac Securities Corp. and - - - - 249,603 - - - - - 249,948
financial asse several financial institutiol
2003 Government Bond Series |H " ” - - 400,709 - 299,852 - - - - - -
Corporate bond
Taiwan Mobile Co., Ltd Available-for-salgGrand Cathay Securities Corp. - - - - 2,000,000 - - - - - 2,032,658
financial assets| and several financial
institutions
(Continued)
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votab Financial . Beginning Balance Acquisition Disposal (Note 2) Eridg Balance (Note 3)
Marketable Securities Type and Nature o . Amount Shares/Units Amount . Amount Carrying Value | Gain (Loss) or .
Company Name Name Suatement Counter-party Relationship (Ii”}aggj’s L;ﬂ'éss) (US$in | (inThousands)|  (US$in (lﬁﬁgjlsggzz) (USS$ in (US$in | Disposal (US$ (lﬁr}e}]rgj’sgﬂzss) Q?ﬂg:‘sggf)
Thousands) (Note 1) Thousands) Thousands) Thousands) | in Thousands)
Formosa Chemicals & Fiber  [Held-to-maturity |Grand Cathay Securities Corp. - -1 3 - -3 198,914 -3 -8 - % - - 1% 199,910
Corporation financial assets| and several financial
institutions
Formosa Petrochemical " ” - - 3,581,667 - 959,827 - - - - - 3,554,908
Corporation
Taiwan Power Company " ” - - 2,630,064 - 3,192,915 - - - - - 4,209,629
Formosa Plastic Corporation ” ” - - 391,134 - 1,984,471 - - - - - 2,385,285
Nan Ya Plastics Corporation " ” - - 1,804,346 - 2,486,383 - - - - - 3,487,804
Capita
VTAF Il Investments - Subsidiary - 906,536 - 466,783 - - - - - 1,305,605
accounted for
using equity
method
TSMC Corporate bond
International | General Elec Cap Corp. Mtn Held-tatunity |BNP PARIBAS, London - - - - | US$ 20,864 - - - - - |US$ 20,791
financial assets
General Elec Cap Corp. Mtn ” ” - - - - | US$ 20,316 - - - - - | US$ 20,294
TSMC Corporate bond
Development | GE Capital Corp. Held-to-maturityBNP PARIBAS, London - - - - | US$ 20,478 - - - - - | US$ 20,447
financial assets
GuUC Open-end mutual funds
PCA Well Pool Fund Available-for-salgPCA Securities Investment - - - 19,654 252,000 19,654 252,536 252,000 536 - -
financial assets| Trust Co., Ltd.
Prudential Financial Bond Fund " Prudential Financial Securitiep - - - 18,087 271,000 18,087 271,331 271,000 331 - -
Investment Trust Enterpri
Uni-President James Bond Fund ” Uni-President Assets - - - 17,430 275,000 17,430 275,390 275,000 390 - -
Management Corp.
Cathay Bond Fund ” Cathay Securities Investment - - - 16,096 190,000 16,096 190,077 190,000 7 - -
Trust Co., Ltd.
NITC Taiwan Bond Fund ” National Investment Trust Col, - - - 15,575 225,000 15,575 225,206 225,000 206 - -
Ltd.
IBT 1699 Bond Fund " IBT Asset Magement Co., Ltd. - - - 13,383 170,000 13,383 170,333 170,000 333 - -
ING Taiwan Bond Fund " ING Securities Investment - - - 13,262 205,000 13,262 205,393 205,000 393 - -
Trust Co., Ltd
IBT Ta-Chong Bond Fund ” IBT Asset Magement Co., Ltd. - - - 11,631 155,000 11,631 155,255 155,000 255 - -
Fuh Hwa Bond Fund " Fuh Hwa Investment Trust Cq., - - - 12,602 172,000 12,602 172,353 172,000 353 - -
Ltd.
Mega Diamond Bond Fund ” Mega International Investment - - - 12,484 147,000 12,484 147,117 147,000 117 - -
Trust Co., Ltd.
Polaris De-Li Fund " Polaris Securities Investment - - - 10,042 154,000 10,042 154,298 154,000 298 - -
Trust Co., Ltd.
NITC Bond Fund " National Investment Trust Col, - - - 796 135,000 796 135,133 135,000 133 - -
Ltd.
TSMC Global | Agency bonds
Fnma Pool 257245 Available-for-sale - - - - 3,716 | US$ 3,741 - - - - 3,716 | US$ 3,513
financial assets
Federal Home Ln Bks " - - 9,000 | US$ 8,977 - - 9,000 | US$ 9,002 | US$ 8,716 | US$ 286 - -
Federal Home Ln Bks " - - - - 9,000 | US$ 8,783 9,000 | US$ 9,162 | US$ 8,783 | US$ 379 - -
Federal Home Ln Bks " - - 9,000 | US$ 8,939 - - 9,000 | US$ 9,003 |US$ 8,735 | US$ 268 - -
Federal Home Ln Bks " - - - - 3,725 | US$ 3,721 - - - - 3,725 | US$ 3,854
Federal Home Ln Bks " - - 5,000 | US$ 4,965 - - 5,000 | US$ 5,003 |US$ 4,850 | US$ 153 - -
Federal Home Ln Bks ” - - 5,000 | US$ 4,980 - - 5,000 | US$ 4,999 | US$ 4,882 | US$ 117 - -
Federal Home Ln Bks " - - - - 7,100 | US$ 7,204 7,100 | US$ 7,420 | US$ 7,204 | US$ 216 - -
(Continued)
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Marketable Secuities T § Financial Nat . Beginnini Ba'I:mce - - IUA_Equisitic;n - R Di?posa::(Notg 2)V | — Eridg Balance (Note 3)
arketable Secuities Type an ature o i moun ares/Unit moun ! moun arrying Value | Gain (Loss) or )
company N S P Sptmen | comersny o | eSS | Toowsanas|_(USain | eS| Gt | shin | Siposa (Uss S | Aot (058
Thousands) (Note 1) Thousands) Thousands) Thousands) | in Thousands)
Federal Home Ln Bks Available-for-sale - - - | Uss - 12,100 | US$ 12,464 8,100 | US$ 8,399 | US$ 8,328 | US$ 71 4,000 | US$ 4,148
financial assets
Federal Home Ln Bks ” - - 18,665 | US$ 19,023 - - 18,665 | US$ 19,403 | US$ 18,951 | US$ 452 - -
Federal Home Ln Bks " - - 21,900 | US$ 22,342 - - 21,900 | US$ 22,473 | US$ 21,985 | US$ 488 - -
Federal Home Ln Mtg ” - - - - 5,000 | US$ 5,186 - - - - 5,000 | US$ 5,340
Federal Farm Credit Bank " - - - - 7,200 | US$ 7,241 7,200 | US$ 7,475 | US$ 7,241 | US$ 234 - -
Federal Farm Credit Bank " - - - - 3,375 | US$ 3,370 - - - - 3,375 | US$ 3,433
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp. " - - - - 6,700 | US$ 6,690 6,700 | US$ 6,841 | US$ 6,690 | US$ 151 - -
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp. ” - - - - 3,340 | US$ 3,336 - - - - 3,340 | US$ 3,428
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp. n - - - - 3,500 | US$ 3,494 - - - - 3,500 | US$ 3,560
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp. " - - - - 7,000 | US$ 7,572 3500 | US$ 3,712 | US$ 3,786 | US$ (74) 3500 | US$ 3,743
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp. n - - - - 3,391 | US$ 3,389 - - - - 3,391 | US$ 3,108
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp. ” - - - - 3,083 [US$ 3,170 - - - - 3,083 |US$ 2,880
Federal Home Loan Banks ” - - 21,000 | US$ 21,500 - - 21,000 | US$ 21,646 | US$ 21,356 | US$ 290 - -
Federal Natl Mtg Assn ” - - - - 7,200 | US$ 7,248 7,200 | US$ 7,424 | US$ 7,248 | US$ 176 - -
Federal Natl Mtg Assn " - - - - 3,700 | US$ 3,700 - - - - 3,700 | US$ 3,713
Federal Natl Mtg Assn ” - - - - 10,000 | US$ 10,291 6,000 | US$ 6,138 | US$ 6,174 | US$ (36) 4,000 | US$ 4,169
Federal Natl Mtg Assn ” - - 5,000 | US$ 5,169 - - 5,000 | US$ 5,196 | US$ 5,102 | US$ 94 - -
Federal Natl Mtg Assn " - - - - 3,500 | US$ 3,645 - - - - 3,500 | US$ 3,809
Federal Natl Mtg Assn ” - - - - 3,750 | US$ 4,151 - - - - 3,750 | US$ 4,134
Federal Natl Mtg Assoc " - - - - 3,450 | US$ 3,463 3,450 | US$ 3,450 | US$ 3,463 | US$ (13) - -
Federal Natl Mtg Assn Mtn ” - - 3,000 | US$ 2,982 - - 3,000 | US$ 3,006 | US$ 2,909 | US$ 97 - -
Federal Natl Mtg Assn Mtn ” - - 3,200 | US$ 3,171 - - 3,200 | US$ 3,201 | US$ 3,090 | US$ 111 - -
Gnma Pool 646061 ” - - - - 4,173 | US$ 4,352 - - - - 4,173 | US$ 2,468
Corporate issued asset-backed
sewrities
Capital One Multi Asset Exec Available-for-sale - - 9,000 | US$ 9,118 - - 9,000 | US$ 8,710 | US$ 8,998 | US$ (288) - -
financial assets
Capital One Prime Auto Receiva " - - 3,500 | US$ 3,498 - - 3,500 | US$ 3,414 | US$ 3,500 | US$ (86) - -
Daimlerchrysler Auto Tr ” - - 4,335 | US$ 4,337 - - 4,335 | US$ 3,596 | US$ 4,333 | US$ (737) - -
Usaa Auto Owner Tr ” - - 5,000 | US$ 4,998 - - 5,000 | US$ 4,926 | US$ 4,999 | US$ (73) - -
Wells Fargo Finl Auto Owner T " - - 5,000 | US$ 4,956 - - 3,658 | US$ 3,466 | US$ 3,608 | US$ (142) 1,342 -
Corporate bonds
American Honda Fin Corp. Mtn|  Available-for-saje - - 3,150 | US$ 3,107 - - 3,150 | US$ 3,110 | US$ 3,095 | US$ 15 - -
financial assets
Burlington Res Inc. " - - 3,250 | US$ 3,653 - - 3,250 | US$ 3,437 | US$ 3,647 | US$ (210) - -
Depfa Acs Bank ” - - 20,000 | US$ 20,402 - - 20,000 | US$ 20,409 | US$ 19,984 | US$ 425 - -
Deutschs Bank Ag London ” - - - - 2,995 | US$ 3,041 - - - - 2,995 | US$ 3,013
European Invt Bk ” - - - - 10,600 | US$ 10,577 10,600 | US$ 10,461 | US$ 10,577 | US$ (116) - -
European Invt Bk " - - - - 7,300 | US$ 7,277 7,300 | US$ 7,492 | US$ 7,276 | US$ 216 - -
European Invt Bk ” - - - - 10,600 | US$ 10,576 10,600 | US$ 10,676 | US$ 10,576 | US$ 100 - -
European Invt Bk ” - - - - 7,200 | US$ 7,182 7,200 | US$ 7,596 | US$ 7,182 | US$ 414 - -
General Elec Cap Corp. Mtn ” - - 4,000 | US$ 3,978 - - 4,000 | US$ 4,042 | US$ 3,893 | US$ 149 - -
General Elec Cap Corp. Mtn ” - - 3,000 | US$ 3,047 - - 3,000 |US$ 3,070 | US$ 2,994 | US$ 76 - -
General Re Corp. ” - - 3,000 | US$ 3,263 - - 3,000 | US$ 3,060 | US$ 3,319 | US$ (259) - -
Hancock John Global Fdg li Mti ” - - 4,750 | US$ 5111 - - 4,750 | US$ 4,707 | US$ 5,170 | US$ (463) - -
International Business Machs " - - 3,500 | US$ 3,555 - - 3,500 |US$ 3,582 | US$ 3,496 | US$ 86 - -
Keycorp Mtn Book Entry ” - - 3,050 | US$ 3,053 - - 3,050 | US$ 3,041 |US$ 3,016 | US$ 25 - -
Kreditanstalt Fur Wiederaufbau " - - - - 8,700 | US$ 8,679 8,700 |US$ 8,973 |US$ 8,679 | US$ 294 - -
Massmutual Global Fdg li Mtn ” - - 3,800 | US$ 3,737 - - 3,800 | US$ 3,668 | US$ 3,647 | US$ 21 - -
Metropolitan Life Golbal Mtn ” - - 3,400 | US$ 3,366 - - 3,400 | US$ 3,409 | US$ 3,325 | US$ 84 - -
Nationwide Life Global Fdg | ” - - 3,500 | US$ 3,631 - - 3,500 | US$ 3,159 | US$ 3,520 | US$ (361) - -
(Continued)
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B Financial Beginning Balanc¢ A(_:quisition Disposal (Note_ 2 i Ending Balance (Note 2
Company Name Marketable S’\? curities Type and Statement Counter-party Natgre Of. Shares/Units Am°“f“ .Shares, Units Amo“f“ Shares/Units Am"“f“ Carrying \./alue G‘.—’"n (Loss) or Shares/Units | Amount (US$
ame Account Relationship (in Thousands) (Us$in (in Thousands) (Us$in (In Thousands) (USs$in (Us$in p|sposal (Uss (In Thousands)| in Thousands)
Thousands) (Note 1) Thousands) Thousands) Thousands) | in Thousands)
Protective Life Secd Trs Mtn Available-for-sale - - 3,500 | US$ 3,484 - | US$ - 3,500 | US$ 3,274 | US$ 3,396 | US$ (122) -3 -
financial assets
Sbc Communications Inc. ” - - 3,400 | US$ 3,372 - - 3,400 | US$ 3,367 | US$ 3,309 | US$ 58 - -
Money market funds
Ssga Cash Mgmt Global Offshgwvailable-for-sale - - 592,180 | US$ 592,180 1,035,077 | US$1,035,077 1,596,822 | US$1,596,822| US$1,596,822| US$ - 30,435 | US$ 30,435
financial asse
Government bonds
U S Treas Bond Call Available-for-sale - - - - 17,825 | US$ 17,813 17,825 | US$ 17,830 | US$ 17,813 | US$ 17 - -
financial assets
US Treasury N/B ” - - - - 31,300 | US$ 31,414 31,300 | US$ 31,514 | US$ 31,413 | US$ 101 - -
US Treasury N/B " - - - - 4,200 | US$ 4,259 4,200 | US$ 4,260 | US$ 4,259 | US$ 1 - -
United States Treas Nts " - - - - 19,400 | US$ 19,353 19,400 | US$ 19,460 | US$ 19,353 | US$ 107 - -
United States Treas Nts ” - - - - 20,100 | US$ 20,057 20,100 | US$ 20,314 | US$ 20,057 | US$ 257 - -
United States Treas Nts ” - - - - 19,500 | US$ 19,474 19,500 | US$ 19,451 | US$ 19,474 | US$ (23) - -
United States Treas Nts ” - - - - 60,100 | US$ 60,563 60,100 | US$ 60,829 | US$ 60,564 | US$ 265 - -
United States Treas Nts ” - - - - 20,800 | US$ 20,751 20,800 | US$ 21,292 | US$ 20,751 | US$ 541 - -
United States Treas Nts ” - - - - 45,300 | US$ 45,549 45,300 | US$ 45992 | US$ 45,549 | US$ 443 - -
United States Treas Nts ” - - - - 17,000 | US$ 16,886 17,000 | US$ 16,917 | US$ 16,885 | US$ 32 - -
United States Treas Nts ” - - - - 67,600 | US$ 67,804 67,600 | US$ 68,342 | US$ 67,805 | US$ 537 - -
United States Treas Nts ” - - - - 7,800 | US$ 7,787 7,800 | US$ 7,757 | US$ 7,787 | US$ (30) - -
United States Treas Nts " - - - - 14,600 | US$ 14,605 14,600 | US$ 15,114 | US$ 14,605 | US$ 509 - -
United States Treas Nts " - - - - 26,500 | US$ 26,636 26,500 | US$ 26,614 | US$ 26,636 | US$ (22) - -
United States Treas Nts ” - - - - 6,400 | US$ 6,372 6,400 | US$ 6,282 | US$ 6,372 | US$ (90) - -
United States Treas Nts ” - - 25,900 | US$ 25,924 - - 25,900 | US$ 26,091 | US$ 25,941 | US$ 150 - -
United States Treas Nts " - - - - 14,700 | US$ 14,887 14,700 | US$ 14,990 | US$ 14,887 | US$ 103 - -
United States Treas Nts ” - - - - 11,500 | US$ 11,615 11,500 | US$ 11,652 | US$ 11,615| US$ 37 - -
United States Treas Nts " - - - - 53,300 | US$ 54,114 53,300 | US$ 54,153 | US$ 54,114 | US$ 39 - -
United States Treas Nts ” - - - - 4,000 | US$ 4,057 4,000 | US$ 3,969 | US$ 4,057 | US$ (88) - -
United States Treas Nts " - - 5,000 | US$ 5,070 - - 5,000 | US$ 5,077 |US$ 5,037 | US$ 40 - -
United States Treas Nts ” - - - - 3,750 | US$ 3,958 3,750 | US$ 3,861 | US$ 3,958 | US$ (97) - -
United States Treas Nts " - - 5500 | US$ 5,613 - - 55500 | US$ 5,623 | US$ 5,584 | US$ 39 - -
United States Treas Nts " - - 6,400 | US$ 6,500 - - 6,400 | US$ 6,594 | US$ 6,407 | US$ 187 - -
United States Treas Nts " - - 41,900 | US$ 42,509 - - 41,900 | US$ 42,867 | US$ 41,870 | US$ 997 - -
United States Treas Nts " - - - - 4,000 | US$ 4,200 4,000 | US$ 4,210 | US$ 4,199 | US$ 11 - -
United States Treas Nts " - - - - 10,266 | US$ 11,167 - - - - 10,266 | US$ 10,374
United States Treas Nts " - - 5,000 | US$ 5,160 2,000 | US$ 2,062 7,000 | US$ 7,308 | US$ 7,119 | US$ 189 - -
United States Treas Nts ” - - - - 10,000 | US$ 10,525 10,000 | US$ 10,489 | US$ 10,525| US$ (36) - -
United States Treas Nts " - - 3,250 | US$ 3,359 - - 3,250 | US$ 3,347 | US$ 3,298 | US$ 49 - -
United States Treas Nts ” - - - - 10,000 | US$ 10,866 10,000 | US$ 11,008 | US$ 10,866 | US$ 142 - -
United States Treas Nts " - - 7,500 | US$ 7,758 - - 7,500 | US$ 7,855 |US$ 7,742 | US$ 113 - -
United States Treas Nts ” - - - - 15,000 | US$ 16,162 15,000 | US$ 16,335 | US$ 16,162 | US$ 173 - -
United States Treas Nts " - - 9,500 | US$ 9,735 - - 9,500 | US$ 9,757 | US$ 9,479 | US$ 278 - -
United States Treas Nts ” - - - - 11,250 | US$ 12,259 11,250 | US$ 12,038 | US$ 12,259 | US$ (221) - -
United States Treas Nts " - - - - 19,700 | US$ 19,900 19,700 | US$ 20,045 | US$ 19,900 | US$ 145 - -
Wi Treasury Sec " - - - - 13,300 | US$ 13,383 13,300 | US$ 13,430 | US$ 13,383 | US$ 47 - -
Note 1:  The shares/units and amount of marketaulergies acquired do not include stock dividemdsnfinvestees.
Note 2:  The data for marketable securities dispesetude bonds maturities and capital return frafsidiaries.
Note 3:  The ending balance includes the amortimaifqpremium/discount on bonds investments, urzedlivaluation gains/ losses on financial assetsskation adjustments or equity in earnings of yquiethod investees. (Concluded)
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TABLE 3

Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

ACQUISITION OF INDIVIDUAL REAL ESTATE PROPERTIES AT COSTS OF AT LEAST NT$100 MILLION OR 20% OF THE PAI D-IN CAPITAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Company | Types of Transaction Date Transaction Payment Term Counter-party Nature of Prior Transaction of Related Counter-party Price Purpose of Other
Name Property Amount Relationships| Owner | Relationships| Transfer Date| Amount Reference Acquisition Terms
TSMC Fab January 16, 2008 | $4,045,220 | By the construction Tasa Construction - N/A N/A N/A N/A Public bidding|Manufacturing None
January 19, 2008 progress Corporation, Fu Tsu purpose
Construction, and China
Steel Structure Co., Ltd.
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TABLE 4

Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

TOTAL PURCHASES FROM OR SALES TO RELATED PARTIES OF AT LEAST NT$100 MILLION OR 20% OF THE PAID-IN CAPI TAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Notes/Accounts Payable or|

Transaction Details Abnormal Transaction Receivable
Company Name Related Party Nature of Relationships — Note
Purchases % to Unit Price Payment Terms . % to
Sales Amount Total Payment Terms (Note) (Note) Ending Balance Total
TSMC TSMC North America Subsidiary Sales $ 198,989 58 Net 30 days after invoice date - - $512,777 50
GUC Investee with a controlling [Sales 1,611,058 1 Net 30 days after monthlyiredps - - 215,190 1
financial interest
TSMC Shanghai Subsidiary Sales 101,245 - Nel3@ after monthly closing - - - -
WaferTech Indirect subsidiary Purchases 8,2m7,8 22 Net 30 days after monthly closing - - (171,089) 3
TSMC Shanghai Subsidiary Purchases 4,717,676 Iidet 30 days after monthly closing - - (117,417) 2
SSMC Investee accounted for usingPurchases 4,441,795 12 Net 30 days after mookbding - - (162,807) 3
equity method
VIS Investee accounted for usingPurchases 3,209,028 8 Net 30 days after monlb$jng - - (317,491) 6
equity method
GuC TSMC North America Same parent company Purchase 1,747,488 41 |Net 30 days after invoice date/| - - (148,680) 20
45 days after monthly closing
XinTec OmniVision Parent company of director |Sales 2,5622,749| 81 Net 30 days after monthly closing - - 309,133 89
(represented for XinTec)
VisEra Same president Sales 23,650 L Net 45§ aftgr monthly closing - - 283 -

Note: The sales prices and payment terms to refmettbs were not significantly different from tleosf sales to third parties. For other relatedypaansactions, prices and terms were determimedc¢ordance with mutual agreements.
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Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

RECEIVABLES FROM RELATED PARTIES AMOUNTING TO AT LE AST NT$100 MILLION OR 20% OF THE PAID-IN CAPITAL
DECEMBER 31, 2008
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

TABLE S

Company Name

Related Party

Nature of Relationships

Ending Balance

Turnover Days

Overdue

Amounts Received
in Subsequent

Allowance for Bad

(Note 1) Amounts Action Taken Period Debts
TSMC TSMC North America Subsidiary $ 11,769,401 6 3 $ 4,130,119 - $ 4,177,615 $ -
GUC Investee with a controlling 215,190 33 1,869 - 103,680 -
financial interest
TSMC Shanghai Subsidiary 112,933 (Note 2) - - -
XinTec OmniVision Parent company of director 309,133 54 - - - -

(represented for XinTec)

Note 1: The calculation of turnover days excludiber receivables from related parties.

Note 2: The ending balance primarily consistedtbér receivables, which is not applicable fordhtulation of turnover days.
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Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

NAMES, LOCATIONS, AND RELATED INFORMATION OF INVEST EES OVER WHICH THE COMPANY EXERCISES SIGNIFICANT IN FLUENCE

DECEMBER 31, 2008

(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unles®therwise Specified)

TABLE 6

Original Investment Amount Balance as of December 31, 2008 N Equity in the
. et Income Earnings
December 31, December 31, Carrying (Losses) of the
. . . 2008 2007 . Value Investee (Losses)
Investor Company Investee Company Location Main Busesses and Products (Foreign (Foreign Shares (in Percentagg of| (Foreign (Foreign (Note_ 1) Note
Currencies in | Currencies in Thousands) | - Ownership Currencies in | Currencies in (Foreign
Thousands) | Thousands) Thousands) | Thousands) Currencies in
Thousands)
TSMC TSMC Global Tortola, British Virgin Islands nJestment activities $ 42,327,24% 42,327,245 1 100 $ 45,756,519% 963,052( $ 963,052|Subsidiary
TSMC International Tortola, British Virgin Islands Providing investment in companies involved ir] 31,445,780 31,445,780 987,968 100 29,637,057 2,082,332 2,082,332|Subsidiary
the design, manufacture, and other related
business in the semiconductor industry
VIS Hsin-Chu, Taiwan Research, design, developnmanufacture, 13,232,288| 13,047,681 628,223 37 9,787,275 1,041,953 (114,707)investee accounted f
packaging, testing and sale of memory using equity method
integrated circuits, LSI, VLS| and related p
SSMC Singapore Fabrication and supply of integratecuits 5,120,028 8,840,895 314 39 6,808,192 2,460,149 757,241 Investee accounted f]
using equity method
TSMC Shanghai Shanghai, China Manufacturing atidgef integrated aicuits a 12,180,367 12,180,367 - 100 6,267,128 (2,904,565))  (2,907,231|Bubsidiary
the order of and pursuant to product design
specifications provided by customers
TSMC Partners Tortola, British Virgin Islands Iisément activities 10,350 10,350 300 100 3,730,913 (973,153 (973,153 )Subsidiary
TSMC North America San Jose, California, U.S.A. leS@nd marketing of integrated circuits and 333,718 333,718 11,000 100 2,435,664 144,918 144,918 |Subsidiary
semiconductor devices
XinTec Taoyuan, Taiwan Wafer level chip size pajhg service 1,357,890 1,357,890 92,620 42 1,506,384 198,178 30,811 |Investee with a
controlling financia|
interest
VTAF Il Cayman Islands Investing in new startt@ghnology companies 1,440,241 973,459 - 98 1,305,605 (92,095 (90,253 )Subsidiary
VTAF I Cayman Islanc Investing in new sta-up technology compani 1,036,4:2 1,095,62: - 98 975,36° (132,15() (129,50%) |Subsidiar
GucC Hsin-Chu, Taiwan Researching, developing, rfeoturing, testing 386,568 386,568 44,904 36 950,263 747,049 269,544 Investee with a
and marketing of integrated circuits controlling financia|
interest
Emerging Alliance Cayman Islands Investing in reart-up technology companie 986,797 1,019,042 - 99 433,481 (6,643 (6,610)Subsidiary
TSMC Japan Yokohama, Japan Marketing activities 83,760 83,760 6 100 137,617 4,943 4,943 |Subsidiary
TSMC Europe Amsterdam, the Netherlands Marketatiyities 15,749 15,749 - 100 124,594 38,454 38,454 |Subsidiary
TSMC Korea Seoul, Korea Customer service and feahsupport activities| 13,656 13,656 80 100 15,117 3,232 3,232 |Subsidiary
TSMC International TSMC Development Delaware, U.S.A Investment activities US$  0.0US$  0.001 1 100 US$ 690,093 US$ 16,011 Note 2 Subsidiary
ISDF Il Cayman Islands Investing in new start-eghnology companies| US$ 32,2890S$ 43,048 42,320 97 US$ 25,586 US$ 240 Note 2 Subsidiary
TSMC Technology Delaware, U.S.A. Engineering suppotivities Us$ 0.001US$  0.001 1 100 US$ 8,408 US$ 1,816 Note 2 Subsidiary
ISDF Cayman Islands Investing in new start-up teddgy companies | US$ 7,680S$ 8,721 7,598 97 us$ 6,529 US$  (2,156) Note 2 Subsidiary
TSMC Development WaferTech Washington, U.S.A. Mastifring, selling, testing and US$ 380,000/ US$ 430,000 293,637 100 US$ 204,558 US$ 27,089 Note 2 Subsidiary
computer-aided designing of integrated circits
and other semiconductor devices
TSMC Partners VisEra Holding Company Cayman Islands Investment in companies involved in the designJS$ 43,000 US$ 43,000 43,000 49 US$ 69,298 US$ 4,633 Note 2 Investee accounted fi
manufacturing, and other related businesses in using equity method
the semiconductor indus
TSMC Canada Ontario, Canada Engineering supptivitées us$ 2,300| US$ 2,300 2,300 100 uss 2,570 US$ 286 Note 2 Subsidiary
VisEra Holding Company|VisEra Hsin-Chu, Taiwan Manufacturing and sellifg@kectronic parts andUS$  91,041| US$ 91,041 253,120 89 US$ 122,700 US$ 4,429 Note 2 Subsidiary
providing turn-key services in back-end coldr
filter fabrication, package, test, and optical
solutions
(Continued)
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Original Investment Amount Balance as of December 31, 2008 N Equity in the
et Income Earnings
December 31,| December 31, Carrying (Losses) of the L 9
. o 2008 2007 . Vaiue Investee (Losses)
Investor Company Investee Company Location Main Busesses and Products (Foreign (Foreign Shares (in | Percentage of| (Foreign (Foreign (Note 1) Note
gn an Thousands) Ownership 'gn | an (Foreign
Currencies in | Currencies in Currencies in | Currencies in O
Thousands) | Thousands) Thousands) | Thousands) Currencies in
Thousands)
VTAF Il Mutual-Pak Technology Co., Ltd. Taipei, i&@n Manufacturing and selling of electronic partsl | US$ 1,705| US$ 1,705 4,590 51 Us$ 1,398 US$ (544 Note 2 Subsidiary
researching, developing, and testing of RFID
Aiconn Technology Corp. Taipei, Taiwan Wholesaliaepcommunication equipments, and - - 4,500 44 Us$ 1,052/US$  (1,339) Note 2 Investee accounted fi
manufacturing wired and wireless using equity method
communication equipments
Growth Fund Cayman Islands Investing in new siartechnology companies  US$ 700 - - 100 uss 100/ US$ (600 Note 2 Subsidiary
VTA Holdings Delaware, U.S./ Investing in new sta-up technologcompanie - - - 68 - - Note 2 Subsidiar
VTAF II \VTA Holdings Delaware, U.S.A. Investing imew start-up technology companies - - - 24 - - Note 2 Subsidiary
GUC GUC-NA U.S.A. Consulting services imain product usg 80C | US$ 10¢ 80C 10¢ $ 34,01¢ [ $ 2,77¢ Note 2 Subsidiar
GUC-Japan Japan Consulting services in main pteduc JPY 30,000 JPY 10,000 1 100 11,854 459 Note 2 Subsidiary
GUC-Europe The Netherlands Consulting servicesam products EUR 5 - - 100 2,563 254 Note 2 Subsidiary
Emerging Alliance VTA Holdings Delaware, U.S.A. Bsting in new start-up technology companies - - - 8 - - Note 2 Subsidiary
Note 1: Equity in earnings/losses of investeeduebecthe effect of unrealized gross profit fromileffes.
Note 2: The equity in the earnings (losses) ofithestee company is not reflected herein as sohuat is already included in the equity in the @ags (losses) of the investor company. (Concluded)
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Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

INFORMATION OF INVESTMENT IN MAINLAND CHINA
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unles®therwise Specified)

TABLE 7

Accumulated Investment Flows Accumulated
Outflow of Oultflow of Accumulated
Total Amount of Investment Investment Equity in the |Carrying Value Inward
Investee Company Main Businesses and Paid-in Capital Method of |from Taiwan as Outflow Inflow from Taiwan as| Percentage of Earnings as of Remittance of
Products (RMB in Investment of (US$in (US$in of Ownership (Losses) December 31,| Earnings as of
Thousand) January 1, 2008 Thousand) Thousand) December 31, (Note 2) 2008 December 31,
(US$in 2008 (US$ in 2008
Thousand) Thousand)
TSMC Shanghai Manufacturing and sales of|  $12,180,367 (Note 1) $12,180,367 $ - $ - $12,180,367 100% $(2,907,231) $6,267,128 $ -
integrated circuits at the (RMB3,070,623) (US$371,000) (US$371,000)
order of and pursuant to
product design specificatio
provided by customers

(US$ in Thousand)

Accumulated Investment in Mainland
China as of December 31, 2008

Investment Amounts Authorized by
Investment Commission, MOEA
(US$ in Thousand)

Upper Limit on Investment
(US$ in Thousand)

$12,180,367
(US$371,000)

$12,180,367
(US$371,000)

$12,180,367
(US$371,000)

Note 1:

Direct investments US$371,000 thousanESKMC Shanghai.

Note 2:  Amount was recognized based on the aufiitadcial statements.
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Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

INTERCOMPANY RELATIONSHIPS AND SIGNIFICANT INTERCOM PANY TRANSACTIONS

(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, UnlesStherwise Specified)

TABLE 8

A. FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

-67 -

Intercompany Transactions
Nature of
No. Company Name Counter Party Relationship . . Terms Eercentage of
Financial Statements Item Amount Consolidated Total Gross
(Note 1) (Note 2)
Sales or Total Assets
Sale: $ 192,986,71 - 56%
. Receivables from related par! 11,512,77 - 2%
TSMC North America 1 Other receivables from related parties 256,624 -
Payables to related parties 327,25( - -
Sales 101,245 - -
Purchases 4,717,676 - 1%
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 197,681 - -
TSMC Shanghai 1 Technical service incom 99,731 - -
Other receivables from related parties 112,933 -
Payables to related parties 117,417 - -
Deferred credits 183,896 - -
Marketing expenses - commission 251,367 - -
TSMC Japan L Payables to related parties 20,528 - -
Marketing expenses - commission 367,846 - -
TSMC Europe L Payables to reted partie 29,67¢ - -
0 |TSMC Marketing expenses - commission 16,408 - -
TSMC Korea L Payables to related parties 1,313 - -
Sales 1,611,058 - -
General and administrative expenses - rental expens 1,050 - -
GUC 1 Research and development expenses 18,940 -
Receivables from related parties 215,19 - -
Payables to related parties 7,003 - -
Research and development expenses 352,900 -
TSMC Technology ! Payables to related parties 41,904 - -
Sales 12,216 - -
Purchases 8,207,876 - 2%
WaterTech L Other receivables from related parties 13,818 -
Payables to related parties 171,089 - -
Research and development expenses 172,291 -
TSMC Canada L Payables to related parties 3,297 - -
Emerging Alliance Fund 1 Other receivables fronatesd parties 5,149 - -
. Other receivables 8,149,,280 - 1%
2 |TSMC Partners TSMC International 3 Deferred revenue 8.149..280 - 1%
(Continued)



Intercompany Transactions

Nature of Percentage of
No. Company Name Counter Party Relationship Financial Statements Item Amount Terms Consolidated Total Gross
(Note 1) (Note 2)
Sales or Total Assets
Purchases 1,747,488 - -
. Manufacturing overhead 298,926 - -
'TSMC North America 3 Operating Expense 1,458 n N
Payables to related parties 148.68( - -
3 GucC ) Operating expenses 105,044 - -
GUC-NA s Payables to related parties 11,074 - -
) Operating expense 28,48( - -
(GUC-Japan 3 Payables to related parties 2.260 - -
GUC-Europe 3 Operating expenses 5,140 - -
Note 1: No. 1 represents the transactions frorerarompany to subsidiary.
No. 3 represents the transactions between sabisisli
Note 2:

The terms of intercompany sales are oifssantly different from those to third partiesFor other intercompany transactions, prices amdgere determined in accordance with mutual ageatsn
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. FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

Intercompany Transactions

Nla ture or:‘_ Percentage of
No. Company Name Counter Party Relationship Financial Statements Item Amount Terms Consolidated Total Gross
(Note 1) (Note 2)
Sales or Total Assets
Sales $ 192,846,641 - 59%
. Receivables from related part 26,626,88 - 5%
TSMC North America 1 Other receivables from related par 98,88t - -
Payables to related parties 13,392 - -
Sales 155,799 - -
Purchases 5,828,541 - 2%
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 216,267 - -
TSMC Shanghai 1 Technical service income 121,771 - -
Other receivables from related par 151,03 - -
Payables to related part 596,58: - -
Deferred credits 510,564 - -
Marketing expenses - commission 220,858 - -
TSMC Japan L Payables to related parties 18,449 - -
0 [TSMC Marketing expenses - commission 316,74 - -
TSMC Europe L Payables to related parties 37,046 - -
[TSMC Koree 1 Marketing expense- commissiol 26,81¢ - -
Sales 795,232 - -
General and administrative expenses - rental egpens 6,139 - -
GUC 1 Research and development expenses 56,887 -
Receivables from related parties 74,003 - -
Payables to related parties 7,411 - -
Payables to related parties 39,403 - -
TSMC Technology ! Research and development expe 354,42: - -
Sales 10,301 - -
\WaferTech 1 Purchases 8,774,750 - 3%
Payables to related parties 784,28( - -
[TSMC Canada 1 Research and development expenses 129,665 - -
TSMC International TSMC Technology 3 Deferredaltyincome 640,658 - -
. Other receivables 9,901,544 - 2%
TSMC Partners TSMC International 3 Deferred revenue 8.773.454 - 2%
Purchases 1,766,788 - 1%
3 leuc TSMC North America 3 Manufacturing overheaq 189,410 - -
Payables to related parties 139,402 - -
GUC-NA 3 Operating expenses 60,010 - -
Note 1: No. 1 represents the transactions frorergarompany to subsidiary.
No. 3 represents the transactions between sahbigisli
Note 2: The terms of intercompany sales are wgoifstantly different from those to third partiesFor other intercompany transactions, prices amdgere determined in accordance with mutual ageagsn (Concluded)
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